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(for the purposes of Listing Rules)
M. Shum Yick Chun
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Mr. Shum Yick Chun
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

WEBSITE
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STOCK CODE
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the ~ ANEBBEREMBEENEEREE &
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial BRIFERERHE EEETBZK&E

statements is set out below: I FEHR) EYWT -
RESULTS E 3
THE GROUP EFH

For the year ended 31 December
BENRIBLEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT TET TERT TET TET

Turnover = 120,877 175,932 155,361 155,823 82,518
Loss for the year FREE (34,534) (74,241) (66,805) (18,134) (52,118)
Loss attributable to: T &IEREMEE !
Owners of the Company ARBEBA (11,862) (63417) (55,275) (24,106) (48,264)
Non-controlling interests RS (22,672) (10,824) (11,530) 5972 (3,854)

(34,534) (74241) (66,805) (18134) (52,118)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BERIEERER

As at 31 December
r12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FATT FET FATT FET

Total assets WEE 653,789 710,140 642,789 655,818 452,446
Total liabilities mafE (244,543) (268,469) (128,615) (75,875) 213817
Net assets BEEFE 409,246 441 671 514,174 579943 238,629
Attributable to: MUTFEIEEN
Owners of the Company TATEEA 324,184 338,691 398,671 449,706 227,040
Non-controlling interests FEIER 85,062 102,980 115,503 130,237 11,589
409,246 441671 514,174 579,943 238,629

SERE (AR EEERAR
“z-szEg O



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” and the “Directors”) of Beijing Sports
and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
2020 annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Annual
Report”), and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Sports and Entertainment Business

In 2020, the National Bureau of Statistics and the General Administration of Sports of
China jointly issued the “2019 National Sports Industry Total Scale and Value Added Data
Announcement”. In 2019, the total production scale of the sports industry in China was
RMB2.95 trillion, recorded an increase of RMBI.12 trillion. There was an increase of 10.9%
compared with 2018, and the added value increased by |1.6%. The data in the report
shows that the construction of fitness facilities such as stadiums, fitness trails and sports
parks in China has been increased continuously with a growth rate of 41.7%, this reflected

a rapid development in constructing of sports facilities in China.

According to the State Council document "B MMREE B EX REBFHENET
B R the total monetary value of the sport industry is expected to reach RMBS trillion by
2025.The sport industry will become increasingly market-oriented, while the sports service
sector is expected to embrace rapid growth. The central government has implemented
policies to streamline the development of the winter sports industry to encourage
universal involvement in and arouse people’s enthusiasm for sports activities. With the
support of national policies and the constant increase in public awareness towards their
own health, the robust development of sport market demand shall bring about new

opportunities to the current and future sport industry.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary, MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome
Corp* (“MetaSpace”), is the leading integrated service provider of construction, operation
and management of air dome facilities in the PRC. These air-supported domes are widely
adopted for use in multi-functional facilities such as sport and recreational facilities, logistic
and warehousing centres, industrial storage facilities as well as commercial exhibition
space. Unlike the conventional structure, the air dome structure is less costly to build
and to operate, more energy efficient and has short construction period and is easy to
relocate and expand over an open space. Up to the end of 2020, MetaSpace has already
constructed over 255 air dome facilities throughout the PRC. Currently, our major
customers including sports & event organizers, government departments, real estate
developers and warehouse operators. The Group will continue to invest in research and
development in deploying start-of-the art technology in building high performance air
dome facilities. The Group will continue to strive for combining advances in aeromechanics,
new materials, ergonomics, energy saving and environmental protection to provide
space for multi-functional facilities in order to satisfy and meet customers' need from
different industry sectors. MetaSpace has obtained over |10 intellectual property rights
(including invention patents, patented air fight and insulation system, software, copyrights
& trademarks, etc.) covering all key technologies in the construction and installation of air

dome structure.

During the first quarter of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic was happened in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC government has implemented several
anti-epidemic measures throughout multiple cities in the PRC. There was a delay in the
resumption of works after the Chinese New year holiday and other work restrictions were
imposed by the PRC government which led to delay our progress of air dome construction
projects and our operation in sports and entertainment services operations. The above
anti-epidemic measures and work restriction have significantly affected the Group's
progress of current construction projects and to tendering process of new construction

projects in the first half of 2020.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

In the second half of 2020, the implemented anti-epidemic measures by the PRC
government effectively controlled the epidemic’s spread out in the PRC. Most of the
economic activities were recovered to normal and the economic environment was
getting much better than the first half of the year. The first-quarter's GDP in the PRC
was decreased by 6.8% as compared to the corresponding period of 2019, then it quickly
rebounded in the second quarter with a positive 3.2% and the third quarter and fourth
quarter recorded a positive 4.9% and 5.2% respectively. By the end of 2020, the overall
GDP growth rate in PRC achieved 2.3% which is the only nation with positive GDP growth

in the global economy.

As the epidemics was effectively controlled with the gradual recovery of economic
activities in the PRC, our sports and entertainment business has also recorded a rebound
with a turnover was increased from HK$16.8 million for the first half of 2020 to HK$101.6
million for the second half of 2020. However, the overall turnover in 2020 of this business
segment was still affected by the anti-epidemic measures implemented in first half of
the year and the segment's revenue was dropped from approximately HK$168.1 million
from the corresponding period to approximately HK$118.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, represented a decreased of approximately 29.6%. The decrease was
mainly because of the suspension of the current construction projects during the work

restrictions period in the first half of 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue was mainly attributable to
the construction service of air dome facilities which amounted to approximately HK$110.9
million of which approximately 76% was for use in sport facilities and approximately 19%
for use in commercial facilities and the balance of approximately 5% for other functional

purposes.

Other than construction services, the Group also focused on operation and management
services and other sports related services which contributed revenue of approximately

HK$7.5 million to the Group.

Looking forward to 2021, the management expects that the condition of the COVID-19
epidemic will under control by the end of 2021. The rollout of vaccines of COVID-19
and the introduction of economic stimulus policies in various countries bring hope to
a global economic recovery. According to the expectation from various international
institutions including the World Bank and the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (OECD), International Monetary Fund that PRC's GDP growth in 202
will exceed 6%.The management is confident that the sports and entertainment business

segment will recover and perform much better than in 2020.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Logistics Business

During the year; the impact on COVID-19 coupled with the tense relationship between
Sino-US has further intensified the competitiveness of the worldwide air cargo business.
Our Group continued to face directly and indirectly completion with other integrated
logistics services providers on a local, regional and international basis in the form of pricing
and customers' network. These challenges put our logistics business under pressure to

drive growth.

Under the current worldwide economic situation, our Group will continue to explore

potential logistics business opportunities in other markets in the near future.

During the year, the Group has successful applied for the Money lending licence in Hong
Kong through a wholly-owned subsidiary. The Management will try to explore the new

opportunity in order to expand the Group's source of revenue.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the shareholders of

the Company (“Shareholder(s)") for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

In the opinion of the Director, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance

its operations in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

Discloseable transaction in relation to the subscription of interests in a fund
On 4 June 2020 and 2 July 2020, the Company, through MetaSpace, its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, subscribed interests in a Fund in an amount of RMB5 million and RMBS5 million,

respectively.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements, MetaSpace agreed to subscribe interests in the
Fund in an aggregate amount of RMBIO million, which was payable in cash by MetaSpace
from its internal resources. The aggregated subscription amount of RMBIO million is

determined based on the condition of the Group's idle cash.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

The principal purpose of the Company of the Fund Subscriptions is to diversify the
investment portfolio of the Company with an aim to enhancing its profitability. The Fund
Subscriptions provide an opportunity to the Company to enhance return by utilising the
idle cash of the Group. The redemption mechanism of the Fund also provides flexibility to
the Company to recover its funds if there are any future investment opportunities that are

appropriate to the Group.

As all of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) in respect
of the First Subscription are less than 5%, the First Subscription does not constitute a
discloseable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules at the time of entering
into the subscription agreement. As certain applicable percentage ratios (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in respect of the Second Subscription, after aggregation with the
First Subscription, exceed 5% but are less than 25%, the Fund Subscriptions constitute a
discloseable transaction for the Company and is subject to notification and announcement

requirements under Chapter |4 of the Listing Rules.

Reference should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 7 July 2020 and

I3 August 2020 for the detail of the Fund Subscriptions.

Discloseable and connected transaction in relation to the proposed acquisition of the
remaining interest in SWIFT KNIGHT LIMITED involving issue of consideration shares
under specific mandate

On 16 December 2020, the Company, Pieta Investment Limited and its guarantor (the
“Vendor") entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the
remaining interest (represented 20% of the entire issued share capital) in Swift Knight
Limited (the “Target Company”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a
total consideration of HK$28,000,000.The Consideration shall be satisfied by the allotment
and issue of 106,000,000 Consideration Shares by the Company to the Vendor at the
issue price of HK$0.2642 per Consideration Share, credited as fully paid, under the Specific
Mandate to be sought at the extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the Vendor is a substantial shareholder of the Target Company which is a subsidiary
of the Company, and therefore is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level. Accordingly, the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further, one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of the Acquisition exceed 5% but
are less than 25%. Therefore, the Acquisition constitutes (i) a discloseable transaction of
the Company which is subject to the notification and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules; and (i) a non-exempt connected transaction of the
Company which is subject to the notification, announcement, circular and Independent

Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

The EGM of the Company was held on 4 February 2021 and was duly passed by the
independent shareholders by way of poll at the EGM. The transaction was completed on

I'l February 2021.

Reference to be made to the announcement of the Company dated |6 December 2020, 4

February 2021,and || February 2021 and the circular date 14 January 2021.

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the investments in the sports and entertainment-related industry in the PRC with focus

on air dome construction, operation and management.

During the year under review, the Group's turnover is approximately HK$120.9 million
comparing to approximately HK$175.9 million during the corresponding year. Gross
profit was approximately HK$1 1.2 million comparing to the gross profit of approximately
HK$48.7 million during the corresponding year. The overall gross profit ratio decreased

from approximately 27.7% to approximately 9.3%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

The decrease in turnover was mainly due to the anti-epidemic measures in the PRC which
resulted in the suspension of the current construction projects in the first half of this year

and the overall economic environment affected by the COVID-19 epidemic.

The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to: (i) the work
restrictions imposed by the PRC government for controlling the COVID-19 epidemic
had caused all direct and indirect costs of the air dome construction projects significantly
increased; (i) certain work procedures of some air dome construction projects required

subcontracting to third parties, the gross profit margin of these projects was relatively low.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$!1.9
million as compared to approximately HK$63.4 million in the year ended 31 December
2019. Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was

approximately HK$0.9 cents (31 December 2019: approximately HK$4.9 cents).

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately

HK$116.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$128.7 million).

Other Income and Gains

The Group recorded other income and gains, net of HK$34.2 million during the year,
compared to HK$19.7 million in the corresponding year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$20.3 million on the
appreciation of Renminbi ("RMB") during the year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year decreased to HK$44.| million, compared to HK$59.2
million of the corresponding year. The cost control was continuing during the year and it
lead to the continuous decrease in administrative expenses. The decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in salaries and allowances of HK$3.4 million, rental expenses of HK$4.6

million and research and development cost of HK$4.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment losses on financial and contract assets

The impairment losses on financial and contract assets mainly represented the expected
credit loss of the trade receivables of HK$4.2 million and contract assets of HK$10.4
million and the expected credit loss on financial assets are fair value through other

comprehensive income of HK$4.8 million.

Other expenses and losses

The other expenses and losses were approximately HK$7.5 million, which represented a
decrease of approximately HK$2 1.2 million or 73.9% from approximately HK$28.7 million
in the corresponding year. The reduced was mainly due to the impairment of construction
in progress of approximately HK$15.9 million was recognised in the corresponding year

but no related impairment during year.

Finance Costs
Finance costs mainly represented the interests on the interest-bearing borrowings of
approximately HK$1.5 million and interests on lease liabilities of approximately HK$1.6

million.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment increased by HK$12.9 million which was mainly due to the
increase in buildings and office equipment of our new factory related to the construction

air dome services.

Goodwill
Goodwill for HK$37.7 million was mainly generated from the completion of the capital
injection of Metaspace on 18 April 2017 and the acquisition of Bodewei* on 28 February

2018, respectively.

Other Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets for HK$0.7 million mainly represents patents, trademarks and
software from Metaspace. The decrease from approximately HK$I 1.6 million in the

corresponding year to HK$0.7 million in the year was due to the normal amortisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

Contract Assets

Contract assets are initially recognised for performance of transferring goods or services
to the customers before the customers pay consideration or acceptance by the customers.
Upon completion of goods transferred or services rendered and acceptance by the
customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The increase in contract assets in 2020 was the result of less contract assets are reclassified

to trade receivables during the year.
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income represents corporate
bonds purchased by the Company through a financial institution in Hong Kong. These
corporate bonds are measured at fair value and is determined by reference to the quoted
bid prices at the reporting date in the over-the-counter markets. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the investment income recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and the fair value loss recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income
or loss amounted to HK$5,284,000 (2019: HK$8,069,000) and HK$884,000 (2019:
HK$1,350,000), respectively.

The fair value of these corporate bonds is determined by reference to the quoted bid
prices at the reporting date in the over-the-counter markets. Going forward, the Group
expects that these corporate bonds will suffer a minor loss at fair value in the short-
run due to price volatility in global economic uncertain and the vulnerability of China’s
domestic debt market with tighter refinancing channels. However; the Group will maintain
its strategy to hold these corporate bonds for long term purpose to earn an attractive yield
and to minimize the risk of price fluctuations in the shortrun and to eliminate unnecessary

administrative and trading costs.

Nevertheless, the Group does not preclude the possibility of disposing any of the existing
corporate bonds before maturity if such disposal will be in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole in light of the circumstances, such as perceived
deterioration of financial health of the issuing company, vulnerability of default risk, and

consideration of favorable redemption clause at the option of the bondholder.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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Name of bond issuer

REETALE

China South City Holdings Ltd.

ERfERERAT

361 Degrees International Ltd.

WIEREERAR

China Evergrande Group

HEEAER

Qinghai Provincial Investment Group Co, Ltd.

EEEREERERAR

Fantasia Holdings Group Company Ltd.

EREERERERAR

Modern Land (China) Co, Ltd

EAEX (PE) ARAR

Central China Real Estate Ltd.

BEMERNERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Name of bond

CEzzaT

CHINA SOUTH CITY HOLDING 11.875%
271312021

CHINA SOUTH CITY HOLDING 11.875%
27132021

361 DEGREES INTERNATIONAL 7.25%
30612021

361 DEGREES INTERNATIONAL 7.25%
3161202

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 6.25%
28/6/2021

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 6.25%
281612021

QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 6.4%
107712021

QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 6.4%
107712021

FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 7.375%
41012021

FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 7.375%
41012021

MODERN LAND CHINA CO LTD 12.85%
25/10/2021

MODERN LAND CHINA CO LTD 12.85%
25/10/2021

CENTRAL CHN REAL ESTATE 6.75%
8/1172021

CENTRAL CHN REAL ESTATE 6.75%
8/11/2021

Investment cost

REMRE
UsDI000
TER

500

535

488

513

500

500

504

Fair Value as of
31 December 2020

HE0005E
128318
NREE
USD'000
TEn

520

441

485

50

511

522

511

the Group's

total assets

(Cf ]
HEAME
Rl
%

%

062

052

058

006

06!

062

06!

EREwmAO
Change in

fair value

Percentage to recognised in

the year ended

31 December 2020
HE2020F
12H31H

L\ BRI
RAREEEY
UsSD'000

TEn

68

(152)

30

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEHRR AW
Change in
fair value
Percentage to recognised in
Fair Value as of the Group's the year ended
Name of bond issuer Name of bond Investment cost 31 December 2020 total assets 3| December 2020
HE020E
HE20EF EREE 12A318
128318 BEMLE LLEERDH
BHETARE E5H4H REME NREE ot AREEEY
USD'000 USD'000 % USD'000
S TEn % FEx
Guangzhou R&F Properties Co, Ltd, EASYTACTIC LTD 5.75% 13/1/2022 498 485 057 @n
EMENHERBERAR EASY TACTIC LTD 5.75% 13/1/2022
China Evergrande Group CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.25% 512 480 057 4
2332022
hEEAERE CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.25%
23032022
Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.25% 367 371 044 5
9/4/2022
ENEERZERBRAT KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.25%
9/4/2022
Fantasia Holdings Group Ltd FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 11.75% 334 367 043 9
17/412022
TEEZERERBRAT FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP | 1.75%
17/412022
Nuoxi Capital Ltd. NUOXI CAPITAL LTD 5.35% 497 6l 007 (133)
241112023
HERERERAT NUOXI CAPITAL LTD 535%
241112023
China Evergrande Group CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 7.5% 49) 40 051 B)
28/6/2023
FEEAERE CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 7.5%
281612023
Tianjin State-Owned Capital Investment & TIANJIN INVST MANAGEMENT 0.15% 504 502 059 )
Management Co Ltd 1711212026
RERBEAREEEARAT TIANJIN INVST MANAGEMENT 0.15%
17/12/2026

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE w0

Change in
fair value
Percentage to recognised in
Fair Value as of the Group's the year ended
Name of bond issuer Name of bond Investment cost 3| December 2020 total assets 31 December 2020
HE2020F
HE2020F hEER 12A318
1A3IA BELE L\ BRI

BHETALE EHelE RERT AREE BALE ARBEEE

UsD'000 USD'000 % UsSD'000

S S % S
Agile Group Holdings Ltd. AGILE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD FIX-TO 500 539 0.64 14
VARIABLE (PERP) 8.375%
EELERERERAT AGILE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD FIX-TO
VARIABLE (PERP) 8375%

Total 6,275 (139)
st
Equivalent to HK'000 48,646 (1078)
BHERTER
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss BRARBEAEEHEHHABEZER

BE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents the subscription of wealth BRANREBGEEHEEFABREZER
management products issued by licensed banks in the PRC and an equity investment ~ BEETEFEETETZEMERZA
trading on the National Equities Exchange and Quotation (the “NEEQ") in the PRC.  BBZEIERNTEZET/NEERGEZAM
These wealth management products are measured at fair value and were subscribed (TNEEQ) BEZRAKRE -ZEBHMESR
by the Company through some non-wholly owned subsidiaries for short-term treasury BRAnBESAEERBETIFZENB LS
management purpose and the equity investment was held for long-term capital RERRAMBEEENBEEARQRDE MK
appreciation. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the investment income in respect EREDNFIERABAIEE B F2020F12
of these wealth management products in some non-wholly owned subsidiaries recognised B3 BEFE RiEm kAt mR&ERE
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to HK$4.6 B BRN AL BEWB AR EMERZKE
million (2019: HK$3.3 million). WA A46EEETT (2019F (335 EETT) ©

SEMA X ELEEERAR
“e-zzen 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

Fair value as at Percentage to
31 December the Group's
Wealth management products Revolving term Yield 2020 total assets [nvestment cost
12020128318 &R
BHER {BIRHER 28X PAN N BEEZ LA REME
RMB000 % RMB000
ARET T % ARBT T
Bank of Communication 63 day *Wen de i" redeemable on due date ~ 3.10% 9,034 16 9,000
wealth Management BRI
RBRITIREN RBRIERER
Wealth Bus Ambition No.2 redeemable on due date ~ 3.20% 9020 1.6 9,000
A E BRI (60X) 35T
China Merchants Bank No. 890015 “Zeng Ii" Type B redeemable on due date ~ 340% 8,059 15 8,000
BB RITATII0015% 1B 1B BIE TR (e
Li duo duo No.2 Cash Management redeemable on demand ~ 2.75% 608 0.l 600
N%SREEESE RS
Total st 26,7 26,600
Equivalent to HK$ 000 BERTFET 31759 31614

The Directors confirmed that the considerations of the purchase of the above wealth
management products were determined on the basis of commercial terms negotiated at
arm'’s length between the Group's subsidiaries and the issuers after having considered the

available surplus cash of the Group's subsidiaries for cash management purpose.

The purchase of the wealth management products was for cash management purpose in
order to maximize its return on the surplus cash received from its business operations.
The Group expects that these wealth management products with revolving term will earn
a better yield than direct deposits generally offered by commercial banks in the PRC, and
thus will increase the overall earnings of the Group. In view of achieving balanced yield
whilst maintaining relatively high liquidity, the Directors are of the view that investment
in these wealth management products are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. However, the Group may have intention to
release of any of these wealth management products at appropriate time for general

working capital purpose or any future business opportunities when opportunities arise.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Detail of the equity investment trading on the NEEQC is as follows:

Number of

Cost of shares at shares held at

31 December 3| December
Name of equity 2020 2020
120206 120208
12A3182 12A318
ka4 Rizms s REE
HK$'000 Share'000
TER THR
Shanghai Benemae Pharmaceutical Corporation
(Stock code: 830931)
LECEENHIERNBRAR
(R4S - 830931) 23,770 800

Trade and Bills Payables
The decrease in trade and bills payables by HK$16.8 million was mainly due to decrease in

trade and bills payables was in line with the turnover reduced during the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The Group's net cash outflows from operating activities for the year under review
amounted to approximately HK$55.4 million (2019: approximately inflows of HK$21.7
million). As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$116.5 million, representing an decrease of approximately HK$12.1 million as compared

with the position as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio (which is calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total assets) was 5.7% (31 December 2019: 7.9%). During year ended 3|
December 2019 and 2020, the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$389.3
million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$406.0 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$197.3 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$232.7 million).
The current ratio (which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was

approximately .97 (31 December 2019: approximately |.74).
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Change in fair value

Fair value at Percentage to recognised for
3| December the Group's the year ended
2020 total assets 3| December 2020
BE2020F

1#2020%F 12A31H
1283182 & ILFERDN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

Capital Expenditure
The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$12.0 million (2019: approximately
HK$56.7 million), representing additions to property, plant and equipment and other

intangible assets of the Group.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of approximately HK$10.7
million (2019: approximately HK$2.5 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant contingent liability (2019:
nil).

Charges on assets

As at 3| December 2020, expect for the charge over the buildings and right-of-use
assets with the carrying value of HK$66.4 million and HK$23.9 million respectively for
securing the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings (31 December 2019: charge over
the buildings, construction in progress and right-of-use assets with the carrying value of
HK$17.1 million, HK$37.5 million and HK$22.9 million), the Group did not have any charge

on assets.

Litigations
As at the date of this report, the Group had no material pending litigation.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE
Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers. The carrying amounts of bank balances,
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group will review and monitor
the level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, at the end of each reporting year, the recoverability of each trade debt
is evaluated so as to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors are of the view that the Group does not expose to

significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity Risk
The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a substantial portion of its financial assets
and financial liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its operations from existing

shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flows.

For the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Group monitors current and expected liquidity requirements on a

regular basis.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollar: Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year
under review, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure,
after netting off the gain and loss derived from foreign exchange difference, was not very
significant. Our management will continue to monitor our foreign exchange exposure and

will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is necessary.

Employees and remuneration policies
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 175 full-time employees (2019: 144) in Hong
Kong and the PRC.The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually

according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.

The emolument of each of the Directors and the employees of the Group is on the basis
of their merit, qualification, competence and experience in the industry, the profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other local and international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also participate in
bonus arrangements which are determined in accordance with the performance of the

Group and the individual's performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE Mk D

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentives to Directors
and eligible persons, details of the scheme as set out in the section with heading “Share

Option Scheme” on pages 32 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in
Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs (excluding director’s and
chief executive's remuneration) incurred for the year were approximately HK$3 1.4 million

(2019: approximately HK$35.4 million).

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers, in order to
meet our own quality, safety, environmental and product criteria. During the year end 3|
December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Group maintained good relationship
with its suppliers. The Group also has a well-established business relationship with the

customers.

During the year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, at all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates, as
stipulated under individual employee's employment contract. The Group also ensures that
all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review and the policies on salary
increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all other related benefits are updated from
time to time. For details, please refer to the section headed “Employees and Remuneration
Policies” of this Annual Report, Being people-oriented, the Group is committed to
providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees and encourages them to have a

work-life balance.
In view of the above and as at the date of this Annual Report, there is no circumstance of

any event which will have a significant impact on the Group's business and on which the

Group's success depends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The declaration, payment, and amount of future
dividend will be decided by the Board and will depend upon, among other things, the
Group's result of operations, capital requirements, cash flows, general financial conditions,

and such other factors as the Board may consider important.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The management believes that clearly defined and long-term development directions
established for different business segments will help drive the Group's sustainable business
growth. Looking ahead, the management will continue to strive for better business
performance and deliver greater value to Shareholders. On behalf of the Company, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, staff, customers and suppliers for

their unwavering support of the Group.

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
29 March 2021
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRS

The Directors present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the Company's subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sports and entertainment-related industry in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") with focus in air dome construction, operation and

management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) can be found in the sections with
headings of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and “Five-Year Financial Summary”
set out on pages 6 to 23 and page 5 of this Annual Report respectively. Description of the

risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group believes that sustainable development is an integral part of our business. We
aim at creating long-term values for our stakeholders and contributing to the society by
carrying out our business in a socially responsible way. The Group is committed to support
the environmental sustainability and comply with PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments’ environmental protection laws and regulations. The Company is also
dedicated to promote energy conservation and responding proactively to climatic changes,
so as to facilitate efficient use of energy by taking several measures including constantly
carries out internal recycling measures in terms of its consumables (e.g. Toner cartridge
and paper) and implementing energy-saving policies to reduce electricity consumption, in
order to lessen the impact on environment from operating activities to achieve the target

of sustainable development.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are set out in

note | to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 75

and 76 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders

for the year 31 December 2020.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, |15 June 2021 to Friday, 18 June
2021 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, |8 June 2021, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, || June 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong that have a

significant impact on the Group.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note |2 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 5 of this Annual Report. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year are

set out in notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the vear are set out in

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 79 and 80 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, accumulated loss of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$344.0 million (2019: approximately HK$282.7 million). Under section 34 of the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Article of Association”), and no distribution may be paid to the
Shareholders out of the Company's share premium unless the Company shall be able to

pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for 6 1% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 17%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 30% of the total

purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's share

capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the

laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its Shares during the vear. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeem any listed securities of the

Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed below, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries had issued or granted any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights or exercised any rights in relation to convertible securities,

options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other borrowings of amount HK$6.8
million maturing within | Year (2019: HK$33.5 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any finance lease liability (2019 nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr: Liu Xue Heng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr: Lam KaTak

Mr. Hou Gongda (Appointed on 25 February 2021)

M. Tsui Ngai, Eddie (Resigned on 24 January 2020)

Mr: Zhu Shixing (Resigned on 25 February 2021)

Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (Resigned on 25 February 2021)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Yebi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming

Mr. Xin Luo Lin

Mr: Pan Lihui

Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith

In accordance with articles 86(3), 87(1) and 87(2) and A4.2. of the Code on corporate
governance practices as set out in appendix |4 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”), Mr. Lam Ka Tak, Mr. Hou Gongda, and Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith shall
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company. All
of the above retiring Directors are eligible and will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographies of Directors of the Group are set out on pages 64 to 66 of this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company is not aware of any change
in the information of the Director since the date of the interim report 2020 and up to the
date of this Annual Report is set below:

Name of Directors Details of Change

Pan Lihui Appointed as an executive Director of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: | 102)
Hu Yebi Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of Blue

Moon Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 6993)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Hu Yebi, a non-executive Director; has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 7 November 2018 for a term of three years unless terminated by three

months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr. Lam KaTak, executive Director, have entered into a service contract with the Company
on 23 December 2018 for a term of three years unless terminated by three months'

notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr Liu Xue Heng, executive Director, have entered into a service contract with the
Company on 24 January 2019 for a term of three years unless terminated by three

months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, an independent non-executive Director; has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 January 2019 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.
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Mr Hou Gongda, executive Director, have entered into a service contract with the
Company on 25 February 2021 for a term of three years unless terminated by three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors' fees are subject to Shareholders approval at general meetings; other
emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board with reference to Directors'
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group as well as the

recommendation of the remuneration committee.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out on notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 3| December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to and including the date of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 3| December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive in the shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFQO")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in appendix 10 of the

Listing Rules (the “Model Code™), are as follows:

INTEREST IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY
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Mr Hu Yebi HEERE Beneficial Owner BaBA 181,055,000 968000 1293%
Mr Xin Luo Lin FEMAE Beneficial Owner BnfAA - 968,000 007%
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Notes: Mzt
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(2)  MrLiu Xue Heng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

(3)  MrZhangTingzhe had resigned on 25 February 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section

352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading "Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of

the Company to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 29

the financial statements.

The Company's Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the written
resolutions of the sole Shareholder passed on 3 December 201 I, pursuant to which the
Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grants share
options to any employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director) of any
member of the Group at the exercise price for such number of Shares as it may determine

in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to
selected eligible persons including employee(s) and Directors as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of approving the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme Limit"). As at |6 January 2012, being the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Share Option Scheme Limit was 40,000,000 per-subdivided

Shares.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of ordinary Shares in the capital of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of

ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

A share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is personal to the grantee and
shall not be assignable or transferable. Share options do not counter rights on the holders

to dividend or to vote at Shareholders” meetings.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an AGM of the Company held on 6 June
2017, the Company approved to refresh the Share Option Scheme Limit. Share options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options outstanding, cancelled, or lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the relevant scheme rules) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company has

no other share option scheme currently in force for the year under review.

The Directors consider that the Company should refresh the Share Option Scheme
Limit so that the Company could have more flexibility to provide incentives to the eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme by way of granting share options to them to
strive for the future development and success of the Group.The Directors further consider
that the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Limit is in the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole because it enables the Company to reward appropriately

and motivate the eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme.

During the year 2020, no share options were being exercised.

As at 31 December 2020, there are 37,025,000 outstanding share options, representing
approximately 2.84% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020.
On the basis of 1,302,019,000 Shares in issue as at the 31 December 2020, and taking
into account the outstanding 37,025,000 share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for up to a total of 37,025,000 Shares (the “Outstanding Options"),
the Company may grant share options to eligible participants conferring on them right to
subscribe for a total of up to | 17,286,250 Shares which, when aggregated with 37,025,000
Shares that may be issued under the Outstanding Options (amounting to 154,311,250
Shares which represents approximately | 1.85% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
31 December 2020), is within the said limit of 30% of the total number of Shares in issue

from time to time as required under the Share Option Scheme.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed |0
years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is

exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is to be determined by
the Board provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer for the grant of the option, which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise

price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

The Shares Option Scheme will be expired on 2 December 2021 if not be terminated by
any general meeting earlier. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme s less then |

year at the report date.
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The following table disclosures movements in the Company's share options outstanding TREBALIANEAHKRTERRE 2 &

during the year: N
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
price of
Granted Exercised Forfeited Date of grant of share options
At | January during the during the during the At 31 December  share options Exercise period of Note (i)
Name or category of participant 2020 Year Year Year 2020 Note (i) share options HK$ per share
BRETRE
R00F  REFER  REEER  REEER 100F RitFERERH (0]
RS RER IRIA b iy B 12B318 () BRETEHNE shkEn
Directors:
EE:
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 9,680,000 - - - 9,680,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
ABERE 016F4H8H 016F4F8AE2026F4A7H
Mr. Hu Yebi 968,000 - - - 968000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HEERE 016%F478A WI6F4B8AE6E4ATH
Mr: Lam Ka Tak 290500 - - - 290500 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HEBEE 0I6%F4A8A WI6F4ABAZ06E4ATH
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (Note (iv)) 293,000 - - - 293000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
RESELE () 2016E4F88H 2016F4A8HE2026F4A7H
MrTse, Man Kit, Keith 968,000 - - - 968000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
BXERE 016%F4F8A WI6F4A8AE06E4ATH
Mr: Xin Luo Lin 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
ERMEE 0I6F478H WI6F4ABAZ6E4ATH
13,167,500 - - - 13,167,500
Other employees: 23,857,500 - - - 23,857,500 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HithfES 016EF4F8H 016F4A8B E2026F4A7H
37,025,000 = - - 37,025,000
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

()

(i)

(il

The vesting period of the share options granted on 8 April 2016 is: first 30% of the share
options granted will be vested in one year after 8 April 2016, second 40% of the share options
granted will be vested in two years after 8 April 2016 and remaining 30% of the share options
granted will be vested in three years after 8 April 2016.The share options are exercisable from
the vesting date until 7 April 2026.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus

issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
The closing prices of the Company's shares immediately before the date on which the options

were granted during the year on 8 April 2016 was HK$0.764 per Share.

Mr. Zhang Tingzhe had resigned as an executive director of the Company on 25 February
2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND  FEREREMA TR RIERR(RD 2
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES wRXE

As at the date of the report, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more RARS B A ABREE S RAERA
of the share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the register of BRREBETHEE L Ea B MP L itibA

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: NERA K BRESYT U L2 Ea XA
I
Number of Percentage of

ordinary  No.of share the Company’s

Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held  options held  share capital
Frs @R ST S - YN
0B Mz BRRERMEE B REHE REESL
Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health (@ Through a controlled corporation 353,000,000 S 25.07%
Industry Group Limited (“BEMH")
TEBREREXERERAR ERRELE
(b m iz )
United Win International Corporation (a&b)  Directly beneficially owned 353,000,000 - 25.07%
(“United Win")
United Win International Corporation ERBnER
("United Win 1)
Central Huijin Investment Limited (©) Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
(“Central Huijin") 45,600,000 (5) 3.24%
MRESREAREENT ERRELE
(THHRES )
China Construction Bank Corporation (9 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) S 6.65%
("CCBC") 45,600,000 (5) 3.24%
MEZRRITRNBRAT BERRELE
(MMhEERIRIT)
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (0 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
("CCBIGH") 45,600,000 (5) 3.24%
BOBRERZERBERAT ERREEE

(MBITERERZER))

CCB Financial Holdings Limited (“CCBFH") (0 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
45,600,000 (S) 3.24%
BiTERERERAR ERRELE
(MBfrEmER))

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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Number of Percentage of
ordinary  No.of share the Company’s
Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held  options held  share capital
i AR IS S T YN
e Mz B RkEmEEH BB REHE KRxESL
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (0 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
(“CCBIH") 45,600,000 (5) 3.24%
BIREIR (Fk) AR ((RRER) ERREEE
CCBI Investments Limited (“CCBI Inv") () Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
45,600,000 (5) 3.24%
CCBI Investments Limited (T CCBI Inv ) BETELE
Wan Tai Investments Limited (“Win Tai") (c&d)  Directly beneficially owned 93,600,000 (L) - 6.65%
45,600,000 (5) 3.24%
BRREARRAE (Bik) ERBnER
Hollyview International Limited (e) Directly beneficially owned 181,055,000 - 12.86%
Hollyview International Limited BERBnH#ES
M Hu Yebi (e) Through a controlled corporation 181,055,000 - 12.86%
PHERE ERREEE
Directly beneficially owned - 968,000 0.07%
ERBnEA
Mass Talent Financial Limited ® Directly beneficially owned 76,200,000 - 541%
Mass Talent Financial Limited BERBnHER
Mr: Niu Zhongjie ® Through a controlled corporation 76,200,000 - 541%
TEERE ERREEE
Directly beneficially owned 290,500 - 0.02%
ERBnlER
Pieta Investment Limited () Directly beneficially owned 123,507,500 - 8.77%
Pieta Investment Limited BERBnH#ES
Han Jun () Through a controlled corporation 123,507,500 - 8.77%
wE ERREA

IREEXCEXEESRAH
TRIREER

39



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRS

(@ United Win is wholly-owned by BEMH (Stock code: 2389). Accordingly BEMH is deemed to
be interested in 353,000,000 Shares in the long position to be beneficially owned by United
Win under the SFO.

(b)  United Win directly holds 353,000,000 Shares in long position.

(¢ WinTaiis wholly-owned by CCBI Inv, CCBI Inv is wholly-owned by CCBIH, CCBIH is wholly-
owned by CCBFH, CCBFH is wholly-by CCBIGH, CCBIGH is wholly-owned by CCBC (Stock
code: 939);and CCBC is 57.1 1% owned by Central Huijin. Accordingly, these companies are all
deemed to be interested in the 93,600,000 Shares in long position and 45,600,000 Shares in
short position to be beneficially owned by Win Tai under the SFO.

(d)  Win Tai directly holds 93,600,000 Shares in long position and 45,600,000 Shares in short

position.

() MrHuYebi is the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited.
] Mr: Niu Zhongjie is the sole beneficial shareholder of Mass Talent Financial Limited.

(g9 Ms.Han Jun is the sole beneficial shareholder of Pieta Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report, no
person, other than the directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party and connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the vear ended 31 December 2020 is contained in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its employees.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits to employees

beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to |00% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of histher office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at year ended 3|
December 2020.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group for the year ended 3| December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$ 169,000 (2019: Nil).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in

relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012.

LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report, the Group had no significant

pending litigation or arbitration.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company is contained in note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Company is contained in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period is contained in note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the corporate governance

report on pages 44 to 63 of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
a resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the independent auditor of the Company and

to authorise the Board to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
29 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed itself to enhance the standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics with the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining
and promoting investors confidence and maximising Shareholders” returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory

requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate governance.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and has its Shares listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing
Date"). The corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate
Governance Code as set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board, the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code from the Listing Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised
Corporate Governance Code from | April 2012 until 31 December 2020 respectively,
except for the deviations from code provisions A2.l and D.I4 of the Corporate

Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A2.1, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is both the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered that Mr. Liu Xue Heng has
in-depth knowledge and experience in the sports and entertainment related business in
the PRC; and he is the most appropriate person. Notwithstanding the above, the Board
will review the current structure from time to time.When at the appropriate time and if
candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within

or outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.
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Code Provision D.1.4

Under the code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal letters of appointment
for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company
did not sign formal letters of appointment with Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo
Lin and Mr: Pan Lihui. However, the said Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three vears in accordance with the Articles of Association. In addition, the
said Directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide
for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the

Company.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure

compliance Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performances. Presently, the company
secretary is responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed, either by her
or by members of the Company's senior management, on issues arising at the Board
meetings. The Board delegates its authority and responsibilities to the senior management
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by the senior

management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation to the
Company as well as the advices and services of the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent professional advices
for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company's

expense.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises four executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. The profile of each Director is set out in the “Biographies
of Directors” section in this Annual Report. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the

Board functions.

The Company had received an annual written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific terms and their terms
of office shall expire at the third AGM of the Company after the last appointment and may
be renewed subject to the Shareholders” approval at such AGM. Under the Articles of
Association, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being (or; if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
AGM at which they retire. Also, under the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code, every Director; including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr: Lam Ka Tak, Mr. Hou Gongda and Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith will

retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The family relationships among the Board members, if any, are disclosed under

“Biographies of Directors” section in this Annual Report.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against for Directors and officers in compliance with code provision A.1.8. The insurance
coverage is reviewed by the Company on an annual basis. During the year under review, no

claim was made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender; age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out below:

developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at regular intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

The Board met 5 times during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions, risk management and internal control systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the CEO and the senior

management.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 7 days before
the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. For
committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required notice period

stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are normally sent to all Directors before each Board meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board and each Director also have

separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are kept by the secretary of the meetings and are open for inspection by

the Directors.
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The composition of the Board and the attendance of individual members of the Board and BE2020F 12831 HIEFE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERERS
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3
Board committees meetings during the year ended 3| December 2020 are set out in the RENENEEFEREEZER G LN

table below:

Directors

£

Board Meeting

E500H

Audit
Committee
Meeting
BitREg
E

BEREN T

Attendance
HEER
Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting  General meeting
HINZEEE RLZEE
- B REAE

Executive Directors
WTES

Liu Xue Heng

2218

Lam KaTak

MEE

Tsui Ngai, Eddie (Note 1)
I (=Er)

Zhu Shixing (Note 2)
AR (EE2)
Zhang Tingzhe (Note 2)
RESS (F5E2)

Hou Gongda (Note 3)
EIE (st3)

Non-executive Director
FERITESR

Hu Yebi

HHEFE

Independent non-executive Directors

BIEHTES

Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming
(5] 57

Xin Luo Lin

FEZEM

Pan Lihui

EILNE

Tse Man Kit, Keith

H

Note:

(1) MrTsui Ngai, Eddie had resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 24 January (h %X

2020.

5/5

3/5

o/l

3/5

3/5

5/5

415

4/5

415

3/5

2/2

212

2/2
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[/1 171 [/1
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(2)  Mr Zhu Shixing and Mr. Zhang Tingzhe had resigned as an executive Director of the Company Q) WEBELSERKRESLESIR20219F2H25

on 25 February 2021.

BEHERARMITES-

(3)  Mr Hou Gongda had been appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 25 (B) BEIEREEMNNIF2HLHEZEAR

February 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional development

programs for Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors of the Company received regular
briefings, seminars, conference and/or updates relevant to the Group's business, operations,
risk management, corporate governance, directors’ duty and responsibilities, and other
relevant topics. Materials on new or salient changes to laws and regulations applicable to
the Group were provided to the Directors. All Directors have provided the Company with

their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the execution of
its responsibilities, the Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee. Independent
non-executive Directors play an important role in these committees to ensure that

independent and objective views are expressed and to promote critical review and control.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The Audit
Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lok
Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui and is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence
Yuen Ming, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended in 3 January
2019 to reflect the additional responsibilities of the Audit Committee arising from the
Stock Exchange's proposal on risk management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after Ist January,
2016. It is responsible for appointment of external auditor, review of the Group's financial
information and overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end, has
unrestricted access to the Company's external auditor: lts terms of reference are available

on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

To comply with the requirement under the Corporate Governance Code in respect
of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has
delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and review the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management and to review
the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance

Code contained in the Listing Rules and disclosures in the corporate governance report.
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During the year ended 3| December 2020, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee including the reviews and approvals of the annual results for 2019 and the
interim results for 2020. It also reviewed the Company's progress in implementing the

corporate governance requirements as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which can be viewed on the website of
the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 | with
its written terms of reference revised on 3 January 2019.The Remuneration Committee
comprises of three members, namely Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and
Mr Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
It also makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and recommending the annual remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior executives and other related matters. Its terms of

reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed
remuneration policy and oversee the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management taking into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable

companies, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

Further particulars regarding Directors and chief executive's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to appendix |6 to the Listing

Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

To comply with the Corporate Governance Code, a Nomination Committee was
established on 3 December 201 | with its terms of reference revised on 3 January 2019.
The Nomination Committee comprises of three members, namely Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen
Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Pan Lihui.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size,
diversity and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and accessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director. Its terms of reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Nomination Committee had reviewed and
evaluated the composition of the Board with reference to certain criteria. These criteria
included qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws regarding
characteristics and skills of the Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as ability to devote sufficient time
to the work of the Board and its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and
Shareholders’ meetings; reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the retiring

Directors; and assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young,

the independent auditors of the Company, is set as follows:
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2020

20204

HK$’000

FAET

Audit Services BB 1,900
Non-audit services JEBZRT 739
Total 4ast 2,639

The non-audit services represent the engagement in connection with the Group's 2020
interim financial report and the preparation of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.The Audit Committee
had concluded that it is satisfied with the findings of its review of the audit and non-audit

services fees, process and effectiveness, independence and objectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and suitable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is contained in the

Independent Auditor's Report.

The Board confirmed that it has taken the same view from the Audit Committee regarding

the appointment of the external auditor.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and are designed for the Group to identify
and manage the significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group's business objectives.
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Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal audit function. The Group
conducted an annual review on the need for setting up an internal audit department.
Given the Group's simple operating structure at the present moment, it was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board through the Audit Committee had conducted an annual
review on the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Appropriate measures have been put in place to
manage the risks. No major issue was raised for improvement. The improvement of the
systems of risk management and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the Group's control environment and

processes.

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly reminds
the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update

appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 16 January
2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Shum Yick Chun (“Mr. Shum”), is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised of
the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the

Group and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. Shum was appointed as the company secretary and an authorized representative of
the Company with effect from | April 2019 and further appointed as the chief financial
officer with effect from | July 2019. Mr. Shum, aged 39, is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He obtained an
associate degree of business administration in accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong in 2003 and a master degree in corporate governance from Open University of
Hong Kong in 2017. He has over |6 vears of experience in auditing, accounting, company

secretarial matters and financial management.

Mr. Shum reports to the Chairman, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to

Shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Shum has attended relevant professional

seminars to update his skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules to take no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholders meetings. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.bsehk.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. The Board, according
to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company voting will be announced on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to the
Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a director.The
relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of
this Annual Report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of
any future AGM.
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Article 88 of the Articles of Association provides that if a Shareholder duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director of
the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall deposit
a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating histher willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days after
the dispatch of the notice of AGM of the Company. Details of the Shareholders’ right to
propose a person for election as a Director and the related procedures are set out in the
constitutional documents of the Company published on the Stock Exchange's website

(www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar: Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | | | Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general

meeting must be taken by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A”) of the
Company during the year under review. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the
M&A of the Company is posted on the Company's website (www.bsehk.com) and the

Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk).
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes
periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well

as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

In January 2016, the Stock Exchange amended the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide" or the “Guide") set out in appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

The amendments to the ESG Guide and related Listing Rules will come into effect in two

phases.

The Listing Rule amendments and the upgrade of the general disclosures in the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain”, as well as the revised recommended disclosures,

will be effective for the Company's financial year commencing on or after | January 2016.

The upgrade of the KPIs in the “Environmental” Subject Area of the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain” will be effective for the Company's financial year

commencing on or after | January 2017.

The independent ESG report will be posted on the Company website (www.bsehk.com)
and the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) within three months of the

publication of the Annual Report.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of high integrity who have
a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications,
qualities and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgment, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board, the operating requirements of
the Group. In conducting this assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity
(including, but not limited to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such
other factors as it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated future needs
of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives, qualifications,

qualities and skills on the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a minimum to be
required of any Board members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

broad experience in business;

ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on their experience and

expertise;

commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties; their service on other boards of
public companies should be limited to a reasonable number;

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board members and

contribute to the Board's working relationship with senior management of the

Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which
the Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits with
its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined or recommended, as
appropriate, by the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account the Company's

financial results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

= the Articles of Association of the Company;

= the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands;

= any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time

to time;

= the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and

= any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

FINANCIAL, BUSINESS AND FAMILY RELATIONSHIP AMONG MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD

There is no financial, business, family or other significant relationship among the members of

the Board.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an effective
distribution of the resources and Shareholders' interests. The senior management will
continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's corporate

governance level and quality.
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As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists of eight Directors, including three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and four independent non-executive

Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, and the chief executive officer with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr: Liu is currently
an executive director; joint-chief executive officer, an authorized representative and a
member of Investment and Risk Management Committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical
And Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Before joining the Company, he
served as an executive director and the chairman of Investment and Risk Management
Committee of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925) during the period
from | January 2011 to 23 December 2015. He was also an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718)
during the period from |1 July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an independent non-
executive director of Guangshen Railway Co,, Limited (stock code: 525) during the period
from 2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business
Administration from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom. He has extensive
experience in equity investment, corporate finance, initial public offer, and mergers and

acquisitions.

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Lam has over 6 years of experience in accounting and financial
matters. Mr. Lam currently served as the chief financial officer; the company secretary, the
authorized representative and the member of investment and risk management committee
of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389) and
is mainly responsible for overseeing the financial management, regulatory compliance and
investors related matters. Mr: Lam also serves as an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of the audit committee, and the member of the remuneration committee
of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (stock code: 1483). Mr. Lam worked as an audit
manager at KPMG till September 2010. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003 and a Master in Business
Administration degree from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013. He was a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till June 2010 and has been

a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hou Gongda, aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
25 February 2021. Mr. Hou obtained a Bachelor degree in accounting from Qingdao
University in 2007 and a Master degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in 2021. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hou
worked as an audit manager at Ernst &Young from 2007 to 2015. Mr. Hou joined the
Group in January 2016 and currently served as a director and chief financial officer of
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corporation, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company which is listed on NEEQ in the People’s Republic of China (Stock Code:
831527).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hu Yebi, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23 April
2015 and was redesignated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 November 2018. Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman of Vision Finance
Group Limited. Mr. Hu received his Master of Business Administration from Netherlands
International Institute for Management in the Netherlands and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Management Engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in Beijing, the PRC. Mr.
Hu has more than 28 years of experience in securities and financial services, merger and
acquisition and corporate finance. Mr. Hu is currently the independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of remuneration committee and a member of nomination

committee of Blue Moon Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 6993).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Lok has more than 31 years of experience
in public accounting, finance and commercial working experience in both Sydney and
Hong Kong. Mr Lok received his Master of Economics — Professional Accounting
from Macquarie University, New South Wales Australia in 1988. He was qualified as an
accountant in 1987, and is an associate member of Hong Kong Society of Accountants and
a fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He has been the chief

executive officer of CSI Investment Management Limited in Hong Kong since 2001.
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Mr. Xin Luo Lin, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Xin was a postgraduate from the Peking University in the
PRC in 1980. He was a visiting scholar at the Waseda University, Japan between 1980
and 1983, an honorary research associate at the University of British Columbia, Canada
during 1983 and 1984, and a visiting fellow at the Australia National University, Australia
from 1984 to 1985. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in New South Wales of
Australia in 1991. He was appointed as an adviser to the chairman of Guangdong Capital
Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000. He is an independent investor with over 22 years of
experience in investment banking in the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Xin is currently:
(i) an independent non-executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1 168); and (i) an independent non-executive director of Central China Real Estate
Limited (stock code: 832).

Mr. Pan Lihui, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor degree in International Economics
from Beijing University of International Relations in the PRC in 1989. He has over 27 vears
of experience in nonferrous metals industry. Mr. Pan worked in Mind Honour Limited
from 1994 to 1998 as a manager. Mr. Pan founded Pentart Industrial Limited in 1998 and
Able Plus International Limited in 2001 and has since been a director and general manager
of these two companies. Mr. Pan is currently the executive director of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1102).

Mr.Tse, Man Kit, Keith, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Tse is the executive director and chief financial
officer of China Technology Industry Group Limited (formerly known as China Technology
Solar Power Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8111). He also serves as an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical
And Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Mr. Tse has around 23 vears of
working experience in accounting and financial management. He worked in a number of
international accountant firms and the qualified accountant of Fosun International Limited
(stock code: 656). Mr.Tse is a fellow of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.Tse obtained a bachelors degree in commerce
from University of Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in

accountancy and finance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e

Ernst & Young RXKERTEN SR
EY? i( 22/F, CITIC Tower BEEPIRREEIR
? 1 Tim Mei Avenue hiskE2218

Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT
INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 75 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Codle
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAAZETR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfiled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated

financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
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performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

RRBREE

TEERMATHRER  AESHAMNGEEH
BRENEZERREHR T ER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNBERNMENHARELEE

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

BELRIBIY i TS

The Group derived a significant portion of its revenues from
construction contracts that were accounted for by applying the
percentage-of-completion (“POC") method.

SEEARNOBEIRERATIBDL (POC) AR

A
REGH o

The POC method involves the use of significant management
judgement and estimates, and the revenue, cost and gross profit
realised on such contracts can vary from the Group's original
estimates because of changes in conditions.

POCES REREAREEB IR BEERSNNES
Bl mARENIRKGESREER/RLMEFEHRT
EE

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2, 3 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We evaluated management's assumptions and estimates in relation
to the revenue recognition on construction contracts through inquiry,
performing gross profit analysis and examining the related supporting
evidences such as project status documentation, contracts with customers
and suppliers on a sample basis. We re-performed the calculation of the
percentage of completion for material construction contracts on a sample
basis.
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We also reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group's revenue

recognition of construction contracts.
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Key audit matter

RRBEREE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHNERNARHRREELSEE

Goodwill impairment
BEBE

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards 36 /mpairment
of Assets, the Group is required to annually test the amount of
goodwill for impairment. This annual impairment test was significant
to our audit because the net carrying amount of goodwill of
approximately HK$37,692,000 as of 31 December 2020 was material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, management's
assessment involved significant judgements and estimates, in particular
budgeted gross margins and growth rates, which were affected by
expected future market or economic conditions.
REEBEHENBGREEHE SERESFISNBE
BEEEE - R EIZE20205 12831 B A #1#937,6920008 T2
BEROFENGOUBREMS BEX TULFRAER
HABESNEZMSNBEKR LI EEBFESIREKR
R fbst LHESZRARRTRACER T EZE
BEMRKIBRR

Goodwill disclosures are included in notes 2, 3 and |15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BENREH NGRS BREME2 3KI50

We involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in evaluating the
methodologies and significant inputs such as the discount rate used by
the Group. We also assessed key assumptions including budgeted gross
margins and growth rates by comparison to the historical performance
of the related cash-generating units and performed sensitivity analyses on
the assumptions used in the cash flow projections.
ESEEBRNEEERBHESTLEERRANAERE
RBASE WITER) EFTEBLEERREeELEEUN
BEXRFEFMEIERR BERRENEXRERR UHFER
ERAFRARRETHREDN

We also reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group's goodwill

impairment.
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Key audit matter

RRBEREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHNERNARHRREELSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

E G ENAIBEREAEEN REE

As at 3| December 2020, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately HK$67,916,000 and contract assets of approximately
HK$82,903,000. Trade receivables and contract assets constituted a
significant portion of total assets as at 31 December 2020 and the
Group was exposed to credit risks arising therefrom.

12020 128318 EEB A E 7 BURUIEX67916,0008 7T
REHEEXB2903,0008 7T 1120205128310 > B
REUKRENEEBNBBEENT R MEEBRILE
EREE Rk o

The Group recognises an impairment provision based on the
expected credit loss (“ECL") approach under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. For trade receivables and contract assets which are
individually significant and credit-impaired, management assesses
credit losses individually by estimating the contractual cash flows
expected to receive, based on the evidence of credit-impairment and
forward-looking information. For trade receivables and contract assets
which are not individually significant and credit-impaired, management
uses provision matrix to assess the ECL, which is based on collective
credit risk characteristics. The provision rates are based on the
Group's historical credit loss rate and are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking factors. The impairment provision is subject to
the management's significant estimations and judgements.
EEERBEEBVBERSENSIREH T ARBHNEERS
18 ((RREERR)) ZRDAERRE RENERNKREER
BEEZRWRERENEENS  EEERBEEREER
KRETEMER BREFRARRANEGOREREEET
EEEBE - FEHNFBEAKREEREZESBEFTEAK
BNEEMS  EEERBGROEERRFHCAERER
TR EERR - BAEXREESERELEERRR
5 WKHEURBRERNRAEERR  RERFEIRRARE
BEFHREARMGS Ko

Disclosures on trade receivables and contract assets are included in
notes 2, 3, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
BIRNHRERENEENKE BN EEMHRERME2
3+ 198200
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We obtained an understanding of management's assessment on the
recoverability and the ECL allowance analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets. For trade receivables and contract assets individually
assessed for the ECL, we reviewed the impairment analysis of individual
customers with respect to their respective balances of trade receivables
and/or contract assets and the reasonableness for the estimated
future cash flows on a sample basis. For trade receivables and contract
assets assessed by a provision matrix based on collective credit risk
characteristics for expected credit losses, we checked the appropriateness
of classification in the provision matrix on a sample basis and assessed the
reasonableness of the provision rate taking into consideration historical
loss rates and forward-looking information.
ESTHREEENESRENERGNEENRKERERE
EBEBEREIMNTE -HENZRREEERNENEZE
WRBERENEEMS  BEFURELT N ERENEREES
BWRIER,/ RENEES BEHHEABE DT R EE KR
ReER8NaER ERENETEERBSEZ BEHER
FMERREEERNEZRRREREGNEEMNS BB
EEBRXKAREEN EFLMEs R REERE Y EN
BEMERERERNGEL -

We also reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group's impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact.\We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error:

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAAZETR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ng
Siu Ki Ricky.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEaEnkAEME2ERER

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020612831 BILFE
2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FHET
REVENUE s 4,5 120,877 175932
Cost of sales THE A A (109,689) (127,227)
Gross profit ER 11,188 48,705
Other income and gains E AR A B Wz 5 34,224 19,653
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DIHRES (11,974) (8,642)
Administrative expenses THERHX (44,122) (59,207)
Impairment losses on financial and ETHERENBEREBERRR
contract assets (19,414) (41,377)
Other expenses and losses HfthFse &1 (7,495) (28,707)
Finance costs Rl & Al AN : 7 3.115) (4.256)
Share of loss of an associate DME—REBE A B EE (58) (60)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRI AIES 1B 6 (40,766) (73891)
Income tax credit/(expense) Prigiiike,/ (F%) 10 6,232 (350)
LOSS FORTHE YEAR FREE (34.534) (74,241)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)  Efth2E U/ (§518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be BI SER IR FBEREABIE DM E
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent ?EI iz Hft2mEkaE/ (B8
periods:
Debt investments at fair value through BRANBESEEEEEHFA
other comprehensive income: Hthe\kE 2 fHKRE
Changes in fair value @ﬁfﬂﬁ”@] (929) (1,350)
Reclassification adjustments for losses BiEst AR
included in profit or loss: SN EAE
Loss on disposal HEEE 2,962 884
Impairment losses HERE 4,844 1,910
Income tax effect PRiSIiE 2 (1,142) (238)
5,735 1,206
Exchange differences: FERERE .
Exchange differences on translation of BB BN EBEE VERETE
foreign operations (3,626) 321
Net other comprehensive income that may ERRERHEEHIBE
be reclassified to profit or loss in TE 57 H 2 mU e 258
subsequent periods 2,109 1,527
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEERT (ARFRE)
FORTHEYEAR NET OF TAX 2,109 1,527
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREEEBEBE
FORTHEYEAR (32,425) (72,714)

IREEXCEXEESRAH
TRIREER
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831 B LEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FTHET TEx
Loss attributable to: DURE TEFE(L S8 ¢
Owners of the Company EREEBA (11,862) (63417)
Non-controlling interests FEPER (22,672) (10,824)
(34,534) (74241)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: UTEERIG2EBERLEE
Owners of the Company EREEBA (14,507) (59,979)
Non-controlling interests R (17,918) (12,735)
(32,425) (72,714)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE EARBEEANREERER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY I
Basic and diluted EAREE HK(0.9) centsfll ~ HK(49) centsHlL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R FS IR R

31 December 2020
2020128318

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
W FE7 FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBRE KRR E 12 75,427 62,532
Investment properties REYE I3 21,435 20,842
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14(a) 39,578 39,666
Goodwil BE 15 37,692 37,692
Other intangible assets Httmr B E 16 657 11,589
Investment in an associate R—EME R EZKE 17 566 106
Prepayments, other receivables and FBARIE  H U IE K&
other assets HthEE 18 11,731 7,967
Contract assets BNEE 19 6,020 11,637
Trade receivables B EWEIE 20 119 1,670
Debt investments at fair value through BAnBESEBHEZHFA
other comprehensive income Hth2EWENEHRE 23 25,073 67,576
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBEFEAEEHA
profit or loss BaNEMEE 23 23,791 25203
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 2 22,378 17,671
Total non-current assets FERBEEMLE 264,467 304,151
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 22 13,851 7615
Contract assets BNEE 19 76,883 69,200
Trade and bills receivables B 7 RWHRIE R ERERE 20 72,435 84,007
Prepayments, other receivables and BAMIE HfttRWREREtMEE
other assets 18 28,064 9,772
Debt investments at fair value through BARBEFEAEEHA
other comprehensive income Htm2EKENEHRE 23 23,573 29,098
Financial assets at fair value through BRANBESEEEEEHFTA
profit or loss BaENEMEE 23 31,759 72,056
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIRITER 24 26,210 5,584
Cash and bank balances B& MIRITHEER 24 116,547 128,657
Total current assets REEERE 389,322 405,989
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBER
Trade and bills payables B2RORIEREMNRE 25 90,729 107,496
Other payables and accruals HAtnpe (s IB EsH & 26 86,448 70,042
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st RIRIT R EME™R 27 6,766 33,480
Lease liabilities HE&R 14(b) 3,345 11,223
Tax payable (IR 1A 10,002 10,484
Total current liabilities REEREER 197,290 232,725

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= A Ay
e MBIRR
31 December 2020
2020F12831H
2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B st TET FHET
NET CURRENT ASSETS TEBEEFE 192,032 173,264
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EBERREIAE 456,499 477415
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SHEBITREMER 27 30,592 22,600
Lease liabilities HERR 14(b) 16,601 10,712
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE 21 60 2432
Total non-current liabilities R EBEERE 47253 35,744
Net assets BEFE 409,246 441 671
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 752 B E AFE{L#E R
Share capital &N 28 6,510 6510
Reserves B 30 317,674 332,181
324,184 338,691
Non-controlling interests RS 85,062 102,980
Total equity MR 409,246 441,671

Liu Xueheng
21218
Director

EF

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

78 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Hu Yebi

HEE

Director
EE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

meEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F12B31HLLFE
Actributable to owners of the Company
FAREE AR
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
Share- fair value
Share Exchange Statutory based  through other Non-
Share premium Capital  fluctuation and legal payment comprehensive ~ Accumulated controlling Total
aapital account reserve reserve reserve reserve income losses Total interests equity
BRREE
HEEH
25tA
Ath2E
Wiz
NUfs  SREE
frfn ER EER B AREE
i HEE ASRE  ORBEE  SERE  IRER i RHHR @it JERRiER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tén TAr TEz  FEr  FEx  TEn TiEn Tin TiEn
At | January 2020 R00EIRI8 6,510 549,947* 10,055* 3,628 5,540 17,580* (SA444)F (249,125 338,691 102,980 441,671
Loss for the year ) - - - - - - - (11,862) (11,862) (22,672) (34,534)
Other comprehensive income/ ~ FREMZH
(loss) for the year i/ (548
Changes in fair value of RARBEHER
debt investrments at HEHH AR
fair value through other 2EkE 2B
comprehensive income, REZAREE
net of tax 28 NikiRE - - - - - - (783) - (783) - (783)
Reclassflcation adjustments et ABmz B
of debt investments at RANEEHER
fair value through other HEEHH AL
comprehensive income 2ERGEZEH
forlosses indluded in REMFERIE
profit or loss B - - - - - - 6,518 - 6518 - 6518
Exchange differences on BUREEINEEZ
translation of ERESR
foreign operations - - - (8,380) - - - - (8,380) 4754 (3,626)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  FRZE
for the year s/ (68) 88 - - - (8.380) - - 5735 (11,862) (14507)  (17918)  (32425)
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 6510 549,947* 10,055* (4752 5,540 17,580* 91 (260987)% 324,184 85,062 409,246
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$317,674,000 (2019: & ZERBRERFESUBRARZGER

HK$332,181,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

317,674,000 7 (20194 : 332,181,000

Jo) e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

C IR WArY
GAREEHE
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F 12831 A LEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRR AL
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
Share- fair value
Share Exchange Statutory based  through other Non-
Share premium Capital  fluctuation and legal payment  comprehensive  Accumulated controlling Total
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve income [osses Total interests equity
BARBE
e
BHEY
A
A2
Wiz
WkiA%  SREE
fRp ER EER ERN  AnEE
(i3 2 HER BARE  RORE  SEER  IRER [ ESER Bt FERED Bem
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TER TAR TAR TAT TAT TAT TAT TEn TEn TEn TEn
At | January 2019 R0I9FIRIR 6532 549,033 10,055 139 4070 18473 (6:650) (184,238) 398,671 115503 514,174
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (63417) (63417) (10824) (74241)
Other comprehensive income/ ~ EREMZH
(loss) for the year &/ (548)
Changes in fair vlue of RAREENEE
debt investments at He g AR
fair value through other 2EREZER
comprehensive income, REZAREE
net of tax 28) NIRiRE - - - - - - (1,127) - (1127) - (1127)
Reclassifcation adjustments Rt AR RS
of debt investments at BRANEEHER
fair value through other HEEH A HH
comprehensive income 2EREZER
for losses included in REfFENNE
profit or loss HE - - - - - - 2333 - 2333 = 2333
Exchange differences on BRRERINERZ
translation of EREE
foreign operations - - - 2232 - - - - 2231 (1911) 32
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  FRZE
for the year i/ (58) 88 - - - 232 - = 1,206 (63417) (59979) (12,739) 714
Shares repurchased BEDRA 2 39 (3278) - - - - - - (3317 = (3317)
Share options exercised BiTfEkikE b 17 4192 - - - (1,658) - - 2551 - 2551
Equity-settled shere-based WEREENRNS
payment arrangements ERIATRH 9 - - - - - 765 - - 765 = 765
Transfer to statutory and BNEERGERE
legal reserve - - - - 1,470 - = (1.470) = = =
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 - - - - - - - - - 202 pIy!
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 6510 549947 10,055 3628 5540 17,580 (5:444) (249,125) 338,691 102,980 441671
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘7|' == ] iﬁ.% )ILE'IEE

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020512831HILEE
2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
BizE THT TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEPMERERE .
ACTIVITIES:
Loss before tax: PRI A& 18 (40,766) (73891)
Adjustments for: MU TEERE
Finance costs AlE 7 3,115 4,256
Share of loss of an associate Nia—EHEATEE 58 60
Interest income FIEKA . 5 (1,845) (2.581)
Investment income and return from financial assets A NEEFEBEEEF A
at fair value through profit or loss BhvseMEEY
REWAKRELER 5 (3,636) (6,290)
Investment income and return from debt BAnEEHEBHESHA
investments at fair value through Htt2mbm 2 BHREZ
other comprehensive income = U ONEE 5 (5,284) (8,069)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — HEY)3 BB Rk 5 2 E518 6 8 475
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHMER SE B 6 65 =
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets RIMERAEEE Y W 5 (188) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAD 2 BE 6,32 - 1,108
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BHENE 2z W@ 5 (137) -
Loss on disposal of debt investments at fair value HERAABEEEHES
through other comprehensive income AL ﬂ@%ﬁguﬁlﬁz
BHRE B 6 2,962 -
Covid-19-related rent concessions RELEANTERS
from lessors HEAEEER |4 (675) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BB R EITE 6,12 3218 2,835
Depreciation of investment properties REM=IE 6,12 1,117 2670
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRESENE 6, 14(2) 4,399 3576
Amortisation of other intangible assets H & A i 6,16 11,061 11,392
Impairment of property, plant and equipment EN I E N 6,12 543 15,860
Impairment of investment properties, net REME=HERE 613 (323) 252
Impairment of trade receivables, net B RRTIERERE 6,20 4,184 13783
Impairment of contract assets, net ENEENESER 6,19 10,386 2367
Impairment of debt investments at fair value through AR BB 2 B HEH T A
other comprehensive income, net HMEZAKRRZBEREZ
BB R 6 4,844 1910
Impairment of other receivables, net HMEWRIEZ BB FEE 6,18 - 23317
Impairment of inventories ZEHE 6 1,177 -
Equity-settled share option expense G ERERENS 29 - 765
(5,707) (6205)
Increase in restricted bank deposits S IRHISRITEZUEM (20,626) (4.169)
Increase in inventories FEEm (7,413) (5,680)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets aNEERD/ (2 (12,452) [1,416
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables B RWRIER RN ZE
B/ () 8,894 (28388)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and BIE HMEWRIER
other assets A& AR 1,951 11,553
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables B RUMIENENEE
20/ Gl (16,767) 42,044
Increase in other payables and accruals Hnfe =8 EZFE STEREM 17,631 4713
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEEXEE T EFHE (19,839) 4,135
Cash from/(used in) operations e,/ i) Re (54,328) 29419
Interest received HE 223 198
Income taxes paid BAMER (1,291) (7,870)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities ~ 4X&EZEIF1S,/ (FTFR)
Reng®H (55,396) 21,747

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRERAER

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F 12831 A LEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & & B FRS IR & Mt 8
Interest received from financial assets at fair value 32 A A BB 2 B &85 A
through profit or loss and debt investments BaZzeREERRANEE
at fair value through other comprehensive stEEHEFF AEMPERG
income ZBHRENEWF S 10,472 10,487
Interest received from loan to third parties ME=AREEFNEWH S 1,055 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME -BEKMKE (19,198) (34410)
Proceeds from disposal of property,plantand &Y% B E MR B 2 FT1EHIE
equipment 94 462
Additions to other intangible assets hEHMEBEREE (178) (1o1)
Purchase of debt investments at fair value BERANBESTEBHEFHFA
through other comprehensive income Hit el mzBHKE - (51,639)
Proceeds from disposal of debt investments at  HER A AEEFTEBEEEFFA
fair value through other comprehensive Hthe\EkE 2 BHKkE
income PRS™IR 46,064 32,325
Purchase of an equity investment included i~ BEB T AR ARBEFEBHES)
financial assets at fair value through StAERZ eMEENRAKRE
profit or loss - (22,202)
Proceeds from disposal of wealth management H &5 AR AR BEFTESHES)
products included in financial assets at StABTEZ EMEENENE R
fair value through profit or loss, net PRSI S EE 43243 3010
Purchase of debt investments measured BERANBESEEHEZHFA
at fair value through profit or loss Bm EERE (2,797) =
Proceeds from disposal of debt investments HERANEBEGSELHEEHFTA
measured at fair value through profit or loss B2 BRI EEHIE 4,794 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—BBE A BPEHNIE 243 -
Purchase of shareholding in an associate BER—EBE 8z RE (623) -
Loans to third parties, net BEZHiREERFEE (15,974) =
Repayment of a loan from a third party BE—RE=FREZEN - 5838
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 3% & EEIFT1S (FT )
REREPE 67,195 (56,230)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZBASRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRBPISRIE - 2,552
Repurchase of shares A E ) - (3318)
New bank loans MIBRITEM 12,212 55997
New other loans MIEEMER 109 3014
Repayment of bank loans BIRIBTEM (34,091) (7,136)
Repayment of a loan from a related party BERBAER - (1,157)
Repayment of other loans BERHEMER (797) -
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAREED (4,218) (2,548)
Interest paid BAFE (4,415) (2,605)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities FEE EBIFTTS, (FTF)
RBEREFE (31,200) 44,799
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020612B31HILEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND IR&RIRE ZEY)

CASH EQUIVALENTS o, (R $% (19,401) 10316
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ E#]IRE KIREEEY) 128,657 120,357
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEEXEE T E T 7,291 (2016)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERREEEY

AT END OF YEAR 116,547 128,657
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND & RIREZEBWEHR O

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE R 24 116,547 128,657

SERE (AR EEERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

I.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION . ARREEEN
Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company") is a TRBEAEXCEXEEBERAS (IX
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman lslands and its shares have AR AR—BRHEEHSEMMAIL
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ZERRE ERMEB2012F1816
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 January 2012.The address of its registered office is 3rd HREBBMAEXZMBERAR (MTH
Floor, Queensgate House, | 13 South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, AZFT) FE A T o HOEE S AR
KY-1002 Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in Hong HEZ33rd Floor, Queensgate House, |13
Kong is Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | | | Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand
Kong. Cayman, KY1-1002 Cayman Islands © 282

AREANEEE XM AT BET
ERKREBHI|ISEEEEERLSEIOI

FEo
The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries AR R —BREZERAB - AAT
(together; the “Group”) are principally engaged in the sports and entertainment- RENB AR @iEIAEE) FER
related industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") with focus on air hEAREMR (M) REES R
dome construction, operation and management. IREAERATTR AN RBRRE - EE
REE-
In the opinion of the Directors, the major shareholder of the Company is Beijing EERRARBIZEERRAILE
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited which was incorporated in BEERBREXERBRAR ZLH
the Cayman Islands, and the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. RESHSHEMMIL BERMRE
R LT
Information about subsidiaries BERMBARZER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: AREFENB AT Zs+BENT -

Percentage of equity

attributable

Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company

registration  ordinary/registered PN

and business share capital 3 =R
Name R, B&f7 Direct Indirect Principal activities
o HRRERMSE B/ ERRE B ik TEEH
Sino Sky Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
MEXEFRAD BB 1000078 7T REER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d) AEREEER @)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont d)

BERMB AR ZEN (@)

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration ~ ordinary/registered P\ VNG|
and business share capital (30 SR
Name AR, B&1f7 Direct Indirect Principal activities
o ERRERME TR/ ERRE Bi% ik TERH
Xiang Tai Information and Science and Technology PRC/ Mainland China RMBI,000,000 = 100° Investment holding
(Shen Zhen) Limited*
HAEERE (RYI) BRAR E/PEAE  AREI0000007T REZR
Zhong Hu Sports and Culture Development PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 80* Investment holding
(Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu Sports”)
PEEENLER R BRAT PE/PEARE  ARM300000007 REZR
(hEREE)
Zhong Hu Yueyong (Shanghai) Sports Development PRC/ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100" Investment holding
Limited*
hEfK (LB ERERERAT hE/REARE  ARH50000007T REER
Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development PRC/ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100@ Sports stadium operation
(Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu Dingfeng”)
PERERBER IR BRAT E/REARE  ARHS50000007 RRSEE
(thERE))
Shanxi Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development PRC/ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 1008 Air dome stadium operation
Limited* (“Shanxi Dingfeng”)
WAPEREESERERAR (LARE) el /hEAE  ARMS50000007 ABGRER
Shenzhen Xin Yi Heng Tong Technology Limited™* PRC/ Mainland China RMB3,260,000 = 5092%¢ Trading of goods
(“Shenzhen Xinyi")
AmEREBNEARAR (RIIEZ) E/REAE  AR#32600007 BEAm
MetaSpace (Beiing) Air Dome Corp* (“MetaSpace”) PRC/ Mainland China RMB67,750,000 = 4133 Air dome construction
IRNBRERERMRNERAT PE/PEARE  ARM677500007T RERSE

(HtERE])

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont d)

ARREEER @
BERMBARZEN (@)

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration  ordinary/registered P VNG|
and business share capital (30 SR
Name AR, B&1f7 Direct Indirect Principal activities
o ERRERME TR/ ERRE Bi% ik TERH
Zhejiang Yuedun Zhizao Technology Limited* PRC/ Mainland China RMB45,000,000 = 41.33%  Processing of materials for air
(“Yuedun Zhizao") dome construction
MINERERKBRAR (MBS "RE/REARE AR 450000007 RRBERMEMT
Bodewei (Beijing) Sports Development Limited* PRC/ Mainland China RMB4,500,000 - 23.14% Sports stadium operation
("Bodewel")
Bk Otn) BRERARAR (B84 ) hE/REARE  ARH45000007T RRSEE
& For identification purpose only

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

e These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises with limited liability under
PRC law.

These subsidiaries are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control

over them.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of the excessive length.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") and bills receivable, which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all

values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 3| December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

R 75 SR R P 5E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and

continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,

without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

22

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resufting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income/(loss) is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB BREERBIRAES]
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
BARMHREER T  EHGERIE9%
REBUHREEBTRAES]
Amendment to HKFRS 16
EBUBREENSE SREST
Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8
BRAESERS RREBG
R BBSRRIEST

Definition of a Business

EHHEEZE

FERENE

Definition of Material

BN ESE

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

20/8 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

2.1

22
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Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (early adopted)
A S E EE (IR ERR)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

@

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework) sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for preparers of financial
statements in developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework includes new chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in
financial reporting The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on

the financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

()

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other income
from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred
on or after | January 2020.The amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

©

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues affecting
financial reporting in the period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to
continue during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of the
alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group as the Group

does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies
only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;and
(iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June

2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

(d)

(Contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease payments
for the leases of the Group's office buildings and sports stadium have been
waived by the lessors as a result of the covid-19 pandemic and there are no
other changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted the
amendment on | January 2020 and elected not to apply lease modification
accounting for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
covid-19 pandemic during the year ended 3| December 2020. Accordingly,
a reduction in the lease payments arising from the rent concessions of
HK$675,000 has been accounted for as a variable lease payment by
derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the

year ended 3| December 2020.

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any impact on the Group's consolidated financial

information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BEMBREERBRAES]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BAMBREERESR FEGHEL
BTN B BB RS LB
BBMBRSERBIRRE BN
wEERF 1 6RAEST

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

BBUMBREEEI0RREBG
HER35285% (201 1 5F) W91EET

HKFRS 17

BEPBREERE 75

Amendments to HKFRS 7

BEPBREERE I 75RBES]

Amendments to HKAS |

BEEGERE IRIES]

Amendments to HKAS 16

BBGETERIE 65RHES]

Amendments to HKAS 37

BB ERIE37RMEST

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020

BB L ZER0| 85 F2020F £
FENE

23 EEMERKRERNEEMBREE
Ell
FEETREZSHMBRETEAU
T ERMERREMBIIET RAEET
BBMBRSER

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
SIS HESE

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

FIEBENE—FUEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

REEHABEATAGEFLEZ AN E L TALE

Insurance Contracts’

IRER GAT

Insurance Contracts®¢

IREEE AP

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®

BRDEHRERIFTE

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use?

WE BB RRE  EREBEFITE R

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

EREAN—BITERZ A

Amendments to HKFRS |, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 412

BBMBHREERE 5 BB BREERER BB HREER
£ 1 65EBEMT AR BRI R A R B B G 5T 2RS4 15T AYE ST
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023

¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

s As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS |, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align

the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

é As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before | January 2023
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23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS
3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from |
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group

will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for
changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary relief to
entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity's financial instruments
and risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 202 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities

are not required to restate the comparative information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 0 and HKAS 28 (201 1) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However; the amendments are available for adoption

NOW.

Amendments to HKAS | clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity's right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected
by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
| January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit
or loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a
contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfiling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g, direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after | January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on

the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20/8-2020 sets out amendments to HKFRS |,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of

the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender; including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

. HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example |3 accompanying
HKFRS 16.This removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group's

investment in associates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set
of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that together

significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)
Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd) EBEHEREE (B)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt investments at FVOC], financial assets at FVPL and bills
receivable at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group.The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | = based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 = based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of

such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iify is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)

Related parties (Cont'd)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies (Cont d):

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

@)

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viiiy  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts

as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont d)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms and useful
terms

10% to 33%

20% to 33%

3% to 33%

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Computer equipment 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready

for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost includes expenditure

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the

investment properties to their residual value over their estimated useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are

recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at

least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)
Patents and trademarks
Purchased patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and

are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3.7 years.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is amortised on

the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,

except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leases (Cont d)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

@

®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
(that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms

and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 20 years
Land use rights 50 years
Buildings 3 to 20 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the

period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leases (Cont d)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

(b)  Lease liabilities (Cont d)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a

change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase

option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)
Leases (Cont d) HE &)
Group as a lessor FTEEEZLHAA

When the Group acts as a lessor it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a

lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct costs), and
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The
finance income on the net investment in the lease is recognised in profit or loss so as

to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under

HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change

recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont 'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or

|oss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or; where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that

are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) ERMEERE @)
General approach — %

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next |2
months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including

historical and forward-looking information.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

General approach (Cont'd)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are past due or the

rating of bonds is decreased.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is

no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

General approach (Cont'd)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed

below.

Stage | — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to |2-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but

that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for which

the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
individually assesses credit losses for those individually significant, or with serious
default indicators and credit-impaired and uses a provision matrix to assess credit
losses for the remaining. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific

to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to

adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)

Financial liabilities (Cont d)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the specific identification basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets

similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended

to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration

to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant

financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

@

Provision of air dome construction services

The Group assesses a contract at contract inception, identifies each individual
performance obligation included in the contract, and determines whether
the Group satisfies the performance obligation over time or the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. Revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control

of the distinct good or service.

For most of the Group's construction services, the Group completes
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligations over time and the
revenue is recognised during the contract period based on the performance
progress as determined by the input method, which best depicts the Group's
performance in transferring control of goods or services. The input method
recognises revenue on the basis of the Group's actual efforts or inputs
incurred to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
When the Group is not able to reasonably measure its performance
progress, the Group recognises revenue only to the extent of the recoverable
amount of costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the

performance progress.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

@

Provision of air dome construction services (Cont'd)

The Group provides warranties in accordance with the contracts in
connection with the construction services. The warranties provide the
customers with assurance that the related constructed air domes will
function as the parties intended because it complies with agreed-upon
specifications and does not provide extended warranties in its contracts with
customers. As such, the existing warranties are assurance-type warranties
under HKFRS 15, which the Group accounts for under HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Rendering of operation and management services and other sports and
entertainment services

Revenue from the rendering of operation and management services and
other sports and entertainment services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or at the point in time as

services are rendered.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer; generally on delivery of

goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as

income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHERHE @)
Revenue recognition (Cont'd) Wy = EESD ()

Other income (Cont'd)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included

in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the

customer).
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render

services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which

are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or

performance conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont d)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were

a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in

the computation of earnings per share.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

1 34 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

24 FTEGHERHE @

Ui ft (&)
BERREERFTHRER, RS
1% 4 T B A8 1 5 7 8 A [ 3 1S & e 58
FsZ o (iR B EH NIRRT
REBHEE MARTHUFEE
RERTER BMEAMERRR,/
WRFB IR A ER

WEUREEEZBAOIERAERE
B AITEERRBRE FRBBERT
P B 58 Y 8 s B /D 2R 2 B A A0 A ek it
BAEAEABIKF o L5 fHE B R
Bt & EAERERURKRM X
MBARBERAMEM HESES
ARELM R 0 B FE % 35 5B R A 50
Fo

HAEEHEUREE T RE BRES
EREEDHEE T RHERE
BhBORIS OB ZIFESY ) B EAE
B HESES THIFRBRMFLR
RGBT EER) o 2R B TR
RECHHERRR > UK HBEHE
ERBAER A CEHRR R
RERIER R B BY B oUR Al B Pt
AR

MARTEBRENBEZENSHES
% B ) By [ PR 7 BRI A7 # o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those eligible Hong Kong employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries and associates operating in
Mainland China are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar: As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their profit or loss is translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made

the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the

determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

()

Determining the timing of satisfaction of air dome construction services

The Group assesses a contract at contract inception, identifies each individual
performance obligation included in the contract, and determines whether the
Group satisfies the performance obligation over time or the Group satisfies
the performance obligation at a point in time. The Group concluded that for
most of the construction services, the Group completes satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligations over time and the revenue is recognised

during the contract period based on the performance progress.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the construction services because there is a
direct relationship between the Group's efforts and the transfer of the
service to the customer. The Group recognises revenue based on the
proportion of the actual efforts or inputs incurred relative to the estimated
total expected efforts or inputs for satisfaction of the construction services
when construction components are delivered to the construction sites and

acknowledged by the customers or construction services are performed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Cont’d)

Judgements (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(i) Significant financing component in contracts with customers
When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one vear, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one Yyear or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a

significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
HK$37,692,000 (2019: HK$37,692,000). Further details are given in note |5 to the

financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use.The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)
Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets which are individually significant or credit-
impaired, the Group's management assesses credit losses individually by estimating
the contractual cash flows expected to receive, based on the evidence of credit-
impairment and forward-looking information. Except for trade receivables and
contract assets which are individually significant and credit-impaired, the Group uses
a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets which
is based on collective credit risk characteristics. The provision rates are based on the

Group's historical loss rates, taking into consideration forward-looking information.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default
rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e,, gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates

are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes

20 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific

estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties, the
Group uses the income approach in the course of the valuation by taking into
account the net rental income of the property achievable in the existing market
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the leases, which have
been then capitalised to determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation
rate. The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2020 was

HK$21,435,000.

Provision of ECLs for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income is an area that requires the use
of significant assumptions, including but not limited to determining criteria for
significant increase in credit risk, choosing appropriate models and assumptions for
the measurement of ECLs and taking future economic conditions and the creditor’s

behaviour into account.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current income tax and

deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of
deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was
HK$8,919,000 (2019: nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 3| December
2020 was HK$129,430,000 (2019: HK$122,173,000). Further details are contained

in note 2| to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction contracts

If the Group satisfies the performance obligation over time for construction services,
the Group recognises revenue and costs according to the stage of completion of
individual construction contracts. The stage of completion is estimated by reference
to the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of construction services to date
to the estimated total inputs of the relevant construction contract. The percentage
of completion method involves the use of significant management judgement and
estimates, and the revenue, cost and gross profit realised on such contracts can
vary from the Company's original estimates because of changes in conditions.
Management reviews and revises the estimates of total contract costs for each
contract as the contract progresses.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on
their products and services and has two reportable operating segments: (a) sports
and entertainment segment engaging in air dome construction, operation and
management and other newly initiated businesses such as sports industry related
consultation and management services and (b) others segment involved in other
operating activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment loss,
which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except that interest income,
investment income and return from financial assets at FVPL, investment income
and return from debt investments at FVOCI, loss on disposal of debt investments
at FVOCI, impairment of debt investments at FVOCI, net, loss on disposal of
subsidiaries, non-lease-related finance costs as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

4 IEENEEN @

Sports and
Year ended 3| December 2020 entertainment Others Total
BE2020F 12831 HILEE R R R4 Hith st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FERT
Segment revenue o3 BB U
Sales to external customers RINRE P E 118,371 2,506 120,877
Segment results DEPEE (52,793) (965) (53,758)
Reconciliation: R
Interest income FEWA 1,845
Investment income and return from BRANBESERR
financial assets at FVPL BE G ABR EMEE
Z BREWA KR 3,636
Investment income and return from debt BAnBETERR
investments at FVOCI T AHMEE WG
BHEREZ
KRERA K@ 5,284
Loss on disposal of debt investments at FVOCI ##A R BETE B HEE) 5t
AHMEEW G2 BFK
BHEES (2,962)
Impairment of debt investments at FVOCl, net A A EEFTEH HE
sSFAEMEARGZ
BREREZRETHE (4,844)
Corporate and unallocated expenses, net rERRDEMZFE 11,587
Finance costs (other than interest on R Al A
lease liabilities) (FREB AN 2RI (1,554)
Loss before tax BRIRRIES1E (40,766)
Other segment information: Hitt 3 EER
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 2 RWRIRRE 4,126 58 4,184
Impairment of contract assets, net BHBERBRE 10,386 - 10,386
Impairment of investment properties, net REMEREBERE (323) = (323)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ¥)2& ~ i = K 5% R E 543 - 543
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEK
equipment REEE 18 - 18
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHMELEEESS 65 - 65
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—FBE A8 IR 137 - 137
Depreciation and amortisation e R 19,795 — 19,795
Impairment of inventories FERE 1,177 - 1,177
Capital expenditure™ BARRS* 11,985 - 11,985
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 SR R P 5E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) KEREER (@)
Sports and
Year ended 3| December 2019 entertainment Logistics Others Total
HE019ENAIALEE HERE e iy HAh AR5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FATT TATT TET
Segment revenue o3 BRI 2
Sales to external customers REEEISE IS 168,052 170 7,710 175932
Segment results DEPEE (61,383) (6,230) (773) (68,386)
Reconciliation: AR
Interest income HEWA 2,581
Investment income and return from BRARBEEEH
financial assets at FVPL BEtABE 2R/
BEZRBBRAR
[B] 3§ 6,290
Investment income and return from BRARBESERR
debt investments at FVOCI SE AHMEE
Wmz BHREZ
KREWARER 8,069
Impairment of debt investments BAnEESEER
at FVOC], net Bt AHMER
Wz BHREZ
HEFEE (1910)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARIEIE (1,108)
Corporate and unallocated expenses rERRDERS (18,663)
Finance costs R Al A
(other than interest on lease liabilities) (FHEB AN 2RI (764)
Loss before tax BrIGAIES 1R (73.891)
Other segment information: HthpEE
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 2 RWGRIRRE 13,762 - 21 13,783
Impairment of contract assets, net BREEREBERE 2367 = = 2367
Impairment of other receivables, net HthRUCRIE R B2 23317 = = 23317
Impairment of investment properties REYERE 252 = = 252
Impairment of property, ME-BERZERE
plant and equipment 15,860 - - 15,860
Loss on disposal of property, HEME--BREK
plant and equipment HEEE 475 = = 475
Depreciation and amortisation WE R iH 20,449 24 = 20473
Capital expenditure™ BARRS* 56,729 = = 56,729
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and other @ BARLBEIENE BRERR

intangible assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

@)

(®)

Revenue from external customers

4

RENEEN B
ME &R
(a) IEBEFW

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET TET

Mainland China R Py 3t 120,877 175,932

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

B mERBERERRE
#f 0

(b) FETEHEE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Mainland China FH B Py 157,811 158,285
Hong Kong BHE 35414 35416
193,225 193,701

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of the
assets and excludes debt investments at FVOC|, financial assets at FVPL
and deferred tax assets. The Group's non-current assets arising from
operations included trade and other receivables with an aggregate amount of
RMB3,584,000 (2019: RMB8,442,000) which are located in Mainland China.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about major customers

In 2020, revenue of approximately HK$20,555,000 was derived from provision of
air dome construction services by sports and entertainment segment to a single
customer. In 2019, revenue of approximately HK$33,722,000 was derived from
provision of air dome construction services by sports and entertainment segment

to another single customer:

R 75 SR R P 5E

KEREER (@)
EMIEZFRMNER

120205 EIBREE RIRE S B R E
—RRRHIERERBFELRGHL
20,555,000/ 75 © 1220195 » BB B &
RSN ER —LE—RRRHRAE
ERIE AR A 4 WK £933,722,00078 7T ©

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS Wz ~ ELAA Re ta
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers REFFEHNZWa 120,877 175,932
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 Wam - WA KRl (@)
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEREHNZWE
(@)  Disaggregated revenue information (a) W BB

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE2020F 12831 HIEFE

Sports and
entertainment Others Total
Segments BERRY Hith Mzt
D& HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT THERT
Types of goods or services SmAMRBER
Provision of air dome construction services  fe i RUIE 7248 AR 110,893 - 110,893
Rendering of operation and REEEREERBR
management services and Hiie B E AR
other sports related services 7478 - 7478
Sale of goods HESMm - 2,506 2,506
Total revenue from contracts RERFEHNZ BN G
with customers 118,371 2,506 120,877
Timing of revenue recognition e 3B 2 B
Goods/services transferred A E R EhEE
at a point in time B/ R% 50,627 2,506 53,133
Services transferred over time BEEEELEENRY 67,744 - 67,744
Total revenue from contracts RERRANZ BN
with customers 118,371 2,506 120,877
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 Wak~ A R (@)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d) RKEEREHNZWE (8)
(a)  Disaggregated revenue information (Cont 'd) (a) W BRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE019F 12831 HIEFE

Sports and
entertainment Logistics Others Total
Segments BERRs /i HA )
ik HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THAT TAT THT
Types of goods or services SmARBER
Provision of air dome RHERREERS
construction services 154,980 - - 154,980
Rendering of operation and REESEREERBR
management services and H i S 8RR
other sports related services 13,072 = = 13,072
Rendering of air freight services TR 2R AR - 170 = 170
Sale of goods HESMm - - 7,710 7710
Total revenue from contracts REER G2 B
with customers 168,052 170 7,710 175,932
Timing of revenue recognition R i ]
Goods/services transferred ata 1> 2% — By ] RSB Y
point in time B/ IR% 20474 170 7,710 28354
Services transferred over time BB IR & E MRS 147,578 - - 147,578
Total revenue from contracts REBREHZ BT
with customers 168,052 170 7710 175,932
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

@

()

Disaggregated revenue information (Cont'd)

During the year, the Group recognised revenue of HK$3,210,000 (2019:
HK$2,423,000) that was included in the contract liabilities in respect of the
provision of air dome construction services, the rendering of operation and
management services and other sports related services at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied

in previous periods.

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised below:

Provision of air dome construction services and rendering of operation and

management services and other sports related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in time as

services are rendered.

Sale of goods
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and the
payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for new

customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

(®)

Performance obligations (Cont d)
Sale of goods (Cont d)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 3| December are as

follows:

R 75 SR R P 5E

W ~ ELAMA e i (49
REFRENZWE (&)

BHEE (B)
HEHm (8B)
RI2B3HAEZERERBASME
(RERAIDRER) WX SF
BREEUT :

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET TAT

Amounts expected to be recognised TBHARERS AU ENEEE

as revenue:

Within one year —FR 123,928 123,719
After one year —&E - 7,710
123,928 131,429

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations which are expected to be recognised as revenue after one year

relate to the rendering of other sports and entertainment services, of which

the performance obligations are generally to be satisfied within one to three

years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within

one Yyear. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration

which is constrained.

PEERHAR -—FEEI/K
mMRGBROSENRZER
SERERMHHMES KIRER
BER HPBENESEBEERRN
—E-FEREM - NEERRE
NEENFMBAEMRZEBRE
RBHR N —FRRE S W
LARBENSRLARLREZR
GEIE-SaviE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 Wam - WA KRl (@)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Other income Heng A
Bank interest income SRITH WA 223 198
Other interest income HhF] A 1,622 2,383
Investment income and return from BARBEFEEEEH T AERN
financial assets at FVPL ERMBEEZRERAKRER 3,636 6,290
Investment income and return from BARBESFEEHEFAEM
debt investments at FVOCI 2EBENEBREZRERAKDR 5,284 8,069
Gross rental income from investment REXREYEREHENHEWALEZE
property operating leases 2,071 1,943
12,836 18,883
Gains Wz
Foreign exchange differences, net FERELRFEE 20,341 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBE AR 2 Wm 137 -
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets #% |EfFFAREE & 2 Wi 188 -
Government subsidies B e B 289 56
Others Hith 433 714
21,388 770
34,224 19,653
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. PRIRAIESIR
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): FEBBRRATGELLNR GEA)
THIRIBRER
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By aE FHET TBET
Cost of construction contracts BESHMA 84,042 95,570
Cost of services provided BRI A 909 2,062
Cost of inventories sold EHFEMA 4,184 6,800
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZETE
plant and equipment 12 3,218 2,835
Depreciation of investment properties ~ I EH)Z=ITE 13 1,117 2,670
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHRESERE [4(2) 4,399 3576
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ ELfth & & & #iH 16 11,061 11,392
Research and development costs P2 A 8,229 13,097
Lease payments not included in the Tt \HEBEEZHEMNWN
measurement of lease liabilities 436 4973
Auditor's remuneration AN & 2,717 2,765
Employee benefit expenses BERAMASZ FOEEER
(excluding directors’ and TETHASEFM (MEE8)) :
chief executive's remuneration
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries TERE 27,993 27435
Equity-settled share option expense Rt E RN - 521
Pension scheme contributions BIRGTEIHR 3,456 7,435
31,449 35,391
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Cont'd) 6. [RiRRIESIE @
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P EE FTERT TBx
Foreign exchange differences, net* PE 5 RE P EE* - 7914
Impairment of property, WD~ R e o8 R (B
plant and equipment* 12 543 15,860
Impairment of investment BBV R EFEE
properties, net* 13 (323) 252
Impairment of inventories* &R E* 1,177 =
Impairment of financial and EMRENEERE !
contract assets:
Impairment of other receivables, net HAt W IE R EF 58 18 - 23317
Impairment of contract assets, net BHEERERE 19 10,386 2,367
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 5 U IE R E R 20 4,184 13,783
Impairment of debt investments at BAnEEFEEHEHFA
FVOCI, net Hth2ER@EHRE
HEFEE 23 4,844 1910
Direct operating expenses BEELEHY (BETRNEE2
(including repairs and maintenance KRBT EEMNEBRRE)*
arising from rental-earning investing
properties) * 1,534 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BB M EEE
plant and equipment* 18 475
Loss on disposal of other intangible HEHEMER S EHE
assets* 65 =
Loss on disposal of debt investments at  HERARBEFTEEHEH A
FVOC], net* Hith2EWm 2 BHREBE
R 23 2,962
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries* HE & A Bl iE 32 - 1,108
& These items are included in “Other expenses and losses” in profit or loss of the * ZEFEEG AGeEakEMEE

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

B
MEMAZDMIMT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERTE 2,848 1,619
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14) HEEEHE (fEE14) 1,561 3492
Interest on a loan from a related party (note 36) Rl S EXF 2 (T5E36) - 47
4,409 5,158

Less: Interest capitalised o BARERE (1,294) (902)
3,115 4,256
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the "Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERTETHASEMH
FEEBEERFETHRABHMIRE
ERAMAERGMBRARES L™
A (TEMRA) ~FBAEMERIE
383(1)@)~ (o)~ O R(ER AT (REE
EFHER) ROB2EREWT -

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T FHET

Fees we 1,380 [,560
Other emoluments: HA <&

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e 2 REYH @ 806 770

Equity-settled share option expense Rt SRR 2 - 244

Pension scheme contributions BAREBEEIHI 90 [41

896 [,155

2,276 2,715

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount is included in the above

directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8

@

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were

EERTETHASHM @

(@)

BIFRITER

FEEENBUFNTESZ

as follows: BWEWT
Equity—settled
share option
Fees expense Total
RiEGHE
ik BRERX # st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET F#ERT
2020 20205
Independent non-executive directors BILIFRITEE
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming SERSLE 120 - 120
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 120 - 120
Mr. Pan Lihui BIUIERE 120 - 120
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith X BEE 120 - 120
480 - 480
2019 20195
Independent non-executive directors f&ILIEHITESE
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming LERLE 120 14 134
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 120 14 134
Mr. Pan Lihui B E 120 14 134
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith X BEE 120 14 134
480 56 536

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive

directors during the year (2019: nil).

FENEELMENEILIENTT
EEVENS (2019 : ) o

IREEXCEXEESRAH

ZETEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSSR M
8. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8 EERIEITHASHM @
(b)  Executive directors,a non-executive director and the chief executive (b) BITEF -—HIEHNTEERTE
EITHAER
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme
Fees  benefits in kind contributions Total
F2 2R Bk
g BENEH SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
2020 20204
Executive directors HITER
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* =l e s 180 378 38 596
Mr. Zhu Shixing MBS E 180 - - 180
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe REFSTE 180 428 52 660
M Lam KaTak MERBEE 180 - - 180
720 806 90 1,616
Non-executive director EHTES
Mr. Hu Yebi PEERE 180 - - 180
900 806 90 1,796
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 SR R P 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8 EERIEITHASHM @@
(b)  Executive directors,a non-executive director and the chief executive (b) BITEF -—HIEHNTEERTE
(Cont'd) ETHAE (8
Equity-
settled
Salaries,  share option Pension
allowances and scheme scheme
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions Total
 HEERE  BEEE B4 |
fizkn BYRN  BRERX st &) R st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THT THT THT THT TERT
2019 20194
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* BB A 180 413 144 136 873
Mr. Zhu Shixing RLELE 180 - — 180
Mr. Lam KaTak MEBLE 180 - 15 - 195
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe REESH T 180 - 15 ~ 195
Mr.Tsui Ngai, Eddie B E ()
(note (i)) 180 - - 180
Mr. Jan Wing Fu, Barry ok E A (MEE)
(note (ii)) = 357 5 362
900 770 174 141 1,985
Non-executive director ~ JEHITEE
Mr. Hu Yebi HFELE 180 - 14 - 194
1,080 770 188 141 2179
* Mr. Liu Xue Heng is also the chief executive of the Group. * 2| EBF L AR ANEETT
BUABE
Note i MrTsui Ngai, Eddie resigned with effect from 24 January 2020. Mz B S E 0205 1 B24F

Note i~ Mr Jan Wing Fu, Barry resigned with effect from | April 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: nil).

B =i -

ZIN
ZEYREMN
EE.

mfEe

Bk B ER2019F48 |
HEHT

TEEBEFHFTETHAER
EXMHMNZEE (2019
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year include no director (2019: one
director who s also the chief executive, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above). Details of the remuneration for the year of the five (2019:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

hamEHNES
rFEERLLREHFMEETRS
(209%F . —2EZ (MAFENT
AB) » WEHWZ H BN XM
8) e A% (20194 : %) REFMES
(RAUFABERDEETEETETH
AB) RAFEZ HMENT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FE7

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDH @ 1,942 2236
Performance related bonuses BRIBAEMZIEA 2,407 =
Equity-settled share option expense Rt H B R - 10
Pension scheme contributions BIREB BN 355 285
4,704 2531

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FHRUTBEZFEFTRIFERT
BABZESHMESHENT :

Number of employees

BEHE

2020 2019
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZF | 000,000/ 7T 3 4
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 ,000,00078 75 2 1,500,00078 7T 2 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

In prior years, share options were granted to one non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employee in respect of her service to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees'

remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year; except for the
Company which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of the Company
are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate
income tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25% (2019: 25%),
except for two (2019: one) PRC subsidiaries which are entitled to a preferential tax

rate at 15% (2019: 15%).

R 75 SR R P 5E

TazEHMES @

BEFE —RFEFRIFTETH
ANEZEEHMEENHRAAERR
HeRBERBERE HE—T5HE
HRPHERRWFVZRE - ERE
BHRNETECEINZSEREZA
ABEDREHEREERAMEE
STALBFEERFETETHARZ
B = B B BTN EE

PFRiSR
FRAREBELENGSERAEFNE
165% (20196 @ 165%) Z MRHRES
BRIEH > AL AT B M AR
ETHAEREBR AQBRRRE
B9 E2,000,00078 7T (20194 : 2,000,000
B7T) #8.25% (20194 : 825%) BIRE
TR R ER T REER IR E MR 16.5% (2019
F 1 165%) IR T o

7 & B 5 R B P 3t R A TR A P
CEMER FRERBECEMERR
RA725% (20194 : 25%) » MM (2019
F . —f) PEREAEZAE15% (2019
F15%) 2BERK

ITRREXEEXEEFRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax

prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

0. FR1SHR (&)

HthERREN ZNBACRFEEE
BPFEBR KB AR ERT R K5t

o
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TBET
Current — Hong Kong EH-&H
Charge for the year FAZH 897 888
Current — Mainland China EH—RE R
Charge for the year FAXH 52 10,724
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (140) 39)
Deferred (note 21) IRIE (FisE21) (7,041) (11223)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRMEZ L (%) 858 (6,232) 350
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 0. FRiSIR @
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the BARKRRAEN, (BB BA AT
statutory rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which the Company and the REXBAKEABFEMERSE
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates B ZEEMEGE 2B H
are as follows: RERREFE 2 NER 2 HERN
T
Hong Mainland
Kong China Total
2020 &8 RE A At
20205 HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR TiEn TR
Profit/(loss) before tax BriRRTER]/ (B8 11,283 (52,049) (40,766)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BATREHEZRE 1,862 16.5 (13,012) 250 (11,150) 274
Lower tax rates for specific provinces  FE BN EHEEE
or enacted by local authorities NBRERE (185) (16) 4406 (84) 40l (103)
Adjustments in respect of current tax B FARIENERIRIB 2 BE
of previous periods - - (140) 0.3 (140) 03
Income not subject to tax G ON (3,443) (30.5) - - (3:443) 84
Research and development e B iR
super deduction - - (734 |4 (734) 1.8
Expenses not deductible for tax RaIREE% 1,404 124 518 (10) 1922 @47
Tax losses utilised from BEHABEHRARESSE
previous periods (32 (03) (329) 0.6 (357) 09
Tax losses not recognised KRR RERE 49 44 2,957 57) 3,449 (85)
Tax chargel(credt) at the Groups ~ EASEERREEZ
effective rate HBZ/ (E%) 98 09 (6:330) 122 (6.232) 53
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

0. FR1SHR (&)

Hong Mainland
Kong China Total
2019 &t FREIP st
20195 HK$ 000 % HK$000 % HK$000 %
TR TER T
Loss before tax PRRAIES1E (12,745) (61,146) (73891)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREHEZRE 2103) 165 (15287) 250 (17.390) 235
Lower tax rates for specific provinces  HE BN BHE BB
or enacted by local authorities HBER = (185) 1.5 (938) 15 (1,123) 15
Adjustments in respect of current tax  1BTFEREI BV ERTR 1B 2 s %
of previous periods = = (39) 0.l (39) 0.l
Income not subject to tax BEMRBA - - (857) | 4 (857) Ll
Research and development PR BRI
super deduction - - (1205) 20 (1,205) 1.6
Expenses not deductible for tax ENEEiE A 2862 (225) 5023 (82) 7,885 (107)
Tax losses utilised from BEAREYARESSE
previous periods - - (358) 06 (358) 05
Tax losses not recognised KR RERE - = 13437 (220) 13437 (182)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Groups ~ RASBERREHEZ
effective rate Bzt (%) 574 (45) 24) 04 350 (05)
Il. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY . EAEEE AEGEREE

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,302,019,000 (2019: 1,305,239,021) in issue during
the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts presented for
the years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the impact
of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per

share amounts presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R M 5E
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 YR -BERRE
Leasehold Furniture Office ~ Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HERE HKARKE WARE EERG AE fHRIR a5t
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000
Tén TEn TEr FEn TEn FEx T TEn
3| December 2020 200%128318
At | January 2020: R00EIB IR
Cost A 24467 2687 48| 3412 1025 161 53,069 86,802
Accumulated depreciaionand  REFHTERAE
impairment (4839) (1673) (209 (867) (558) (545) (15,579) (24270)
Net carrying amount REFE 19628 1014 m 2545 467 1116 37490 6253
At | anuary 2020, net of R00EIBIB>
accumulated depreciation and MR ErERAE
impairment 19,628 1,014 7 2545 467 16 37490 62,532
Addtions hE - 36 3 2,09 87 2 9,548 11,807
Disposals e - - (17) (67) (29) - - (1)
Depreciation provided during ~ FREHEITE (Hf¥6)
the year (note 6) (1,809) (461) (o1 (532) (I51) (164) - (3218)
Impairment AfE - (140) - (403) - - - (543)
Transfers from construction BERIESE
in progress 41375 - - - - - (47375) -
Exchange realignment EREE 4247 3% 14 135 yi] 64 37 496
At 31 December 2000netof  FR20204 128318
accumulated depreciation and BRI ERAR
impairment 69,441 484 27 3873 404 1,018 - 75427
At 31 December 2020 20205128318
Cost A 76,515 2904 506 5,404 L7 1772 16,615 104,833
Accumulated depreciationand  EEHEREE
impairment (7.074) (2420) (299 (1531) (713) (754) (16,615) (29,406)
Net carrying amount REFE 69,441 484 207 387 404 1018 - 75427

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REEELE:
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 12 ¥E- -BREKSE @
Leasehold Furniture Offce  Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buldings improvements  andfitures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HERE BRARKE HARE KRB AE fRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn  TEn TEx TExn  TErn  TEn  TErn  TEn
31 December 2019 0195128318
At | January 2019: R0I9EIRIR
Cost A 31388 954l 1948 1,683 732 2391 7,706 66,389
Accumulated depreciationand ~ REFTERAE
impairment (9.164) (3850) (1372) (813) (L115) (1373) - (17,687)
Net carrying amount REFE 004 5691 576 870 617 1018 17,706 48,702
At | January 2019, net of R019EIBIB>
acumulated depreciationand MR REHITERA(E
impairment 024 5691 576 870 617 1018 7,706 48,702
Addtions e = 16 9 2251 67 778 50610 53731
Disposals e (1791) 21) (132) (17 (26) (433) - (2580)
Depreciation provided during ERERAE (ko)
the year (note 6) (1122) (854) (112) (343) (178) (26) - (2835)
Impairment A - - - - - - (15860)  (15860)
Transfers to investment BAREME (WE13)
properties (note 13) (16279) (3469) (61) 2 - - - (19811)
Transfers from inventories BEEEE = - - - - - 2897 2897
Transfers from construction i~~~ BB T 2884
progress 17,122 = = = = = (17,122)
Bxchange realignment ERAE (526) (349) ) (54) (13) 21) (741) (171)
At 3! December 2019,netof  §2019128318
accumulated depreciationand MR REITERAE
impairment 19,628 1014 27 2545 467 L6 37490 62532
At 31 December 2019 B9 12A318
Cost S 21467 2687 481 3412 105 16 53069 86802
Accumulated depreciationand  REHEREAE
impairment (4839) (1673) (209) (867) (558) (545) (15579) (24210)
Net carrying amount REZE 19628 1014 m 2545 467 1116 37490 6253
At 3| December 2020, the Group's buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of 12020512831 B AEBEREEES
HK$66,383,000 (2019: HK$54,612,000) were pledged to secure bank loans of the 66,383,00078 7T (20194 : 54,612,000/
Group (note 27). 70) NI F B PR BB A EBIRTT

4

B (27
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BT ER R M 5E
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 3. REME
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TBET
Carrying amount at | January RIAIHZREE 20,842 21,384
Transfers from property, plant and equipment BYE - -BRERREEE (H5E12)

(note 12) - 19,811
Transfers from right-of-use assets (note 14) BfEAREEEE (t4) - 5,803
Depreciation (note 6) E (Misks) (1,117) (2,670)
Impairment, net (note 6) BB PR (Mste) 323 (252)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE—RMBAB (FzE32) - (22,263)
Exchange realignment e 2 A B 1,387 ©971)
Carrying amount at 3| December RI2B3IHZREE 21,435 20,842

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

The Group's investment properties consist of an air dome stadium in Mainland
China.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group's investment properties
was approximately HK$22,193,000 (2019: HK$20,842,000) as at 31 December
2020.

The fair value measurements of the Group's investment properties are categorised
within Level 3. The valuation technique is the income approach and the significant
inputs used in the fair value measurement are the estimated rental value and

discount rate.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and land used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owner with a lease period of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the term of this land lease. Leases of buildings and land generally have

lease terms of 3 to 20 years.
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14.

@)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
LEASES (Cont’d) 14 105 @
The Group as a lessee (Cont d) FEBEAEBEA @)
Right-of-use assets (a) BHESE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements AERFAEAEBENKRA
during the year are as follows: BEREFHNT :
Leasehold Land
land use rights Buildings Total
Tt
ITHBE Rk BF a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THET
As at | January 2019 201951818 23,854 5953 15,365 45,172
Additions NE = = 4,748 4,748
Depreciation charge (note 6) WERZ (ko) (479) (132) (2,965) (3576)
Transfer to investment properties SR EIREYZE (I5E13)

(note 13) = (5,803) = (5,803)
Exchange realignment R RE (500) (18) (357) (875)
At 31 December 2019 and 1201912831

| January 2020 20201818 22,875 = 16,791 39,666
Additions NE - - 4,40 440
Depreciation charge (note 6) WER (ko) (475) - (3924) (4399)
Termination of a lease RIEHEE - - (2,581) 2.581)
Exchange realignment PR REE 1,494 = 997 2491
As at 3| December 2020 1220205128318 23,894 - 15,684 39,578

At 31 December 2020, the Group's right-of-use assets with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$23,894,000 (2019: HK$22,875,000) were pledged to

secure bank loans of the Group (note 27).

1R20205E 12831 B AEB KA
4818 7%523,894,00078 7T (20194 :
22,875,000 ) MNEAESE
EFERUERAEBRTER
(ffaE27) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

14. LEASES (Cont'd) 14 105 @
The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) FEBEAEBA @)
(b) Lease liabilities () HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year

are as follows:

FREEERNREERED
me:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Carrying amount at | January ®IA I BEAREE 21,935 39,505
New leases HiHE 4,401 4,748
Accretion of interest recognised during FRE A SIL1E
the year 1,561 3,492
Covid-19-related rent concessions REHBANMREREEEEERER
from lessors (675) -
Payments (N (5,779) (3478)
Termination of a lease RIFEE (2,769) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE—RMBAB (FzE32) - (21,323)
Exchange realignment e 2 A B 1,272 (1,009)
Carrying amount at 31 December R 1I2B3I BVEREE 19,946 21935
Analysed into: PR
Current portion RENER 3,345 11,223
Non-current portion JEREE D 16,601 10712

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 to the financial

statements.

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Group has early
adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 and applied the practical expedient
to all eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain

buildings and sports stadium during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES (Cont'd) 14

The Group as a lessee (Cont d)

©

@

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

R 75 SR R P 5E

HE @

FEEEAEBA (@)

(© REZREDNEEHEBRE
me:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TBET
Interest on lease liabilities HESEANR 1,561 3492
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ FRARBEENERS 4,399 3576
Expense relating to short-term leases and BGHATE & K aR NEEARC 128318
other leases with remaining lease terms sz RifEmR M E A RRNF X
ended on or before 31 December GFTASHE A RITHRHX)
(included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses) 436 3,240
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets SR{EEEE AR - 129
Covid- 9-related rent concessions REHBANGEREEEEERER
from lessors (675) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBmEED AR R 5721 10,437

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c) to the financial

statements.

(d MHERSRHERFENTE
HERMIEE33(C) 0
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

I4. LEASES (Cont’d)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note |3) consisting of an air dome
stadium under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$2,071,000 (2019:
HK$1,943,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

are as follows:

HE @

FEREAHBEA

FEERBESEHELHBEEARE
M (WE13) > ZREMEBRES
AR - HERRRERRBEZMIE
BT RTETTHESRAE X
EEFAREENAEUA 2,071,000
BT (20194 1 1,943000787T) » He* B
IR MTEES

RESHR AEEARREEZEMA
Bz AAHEE SR E RN BUCRALR
MERENT :

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHAT

Within one year —&FR 2,176 1922
After one year but within two years —FRERMERN 1,123 1,890
After two years but within three years MERER=FA 876 [,100
After three years but within four years =FREREER 281 750
After four years but within five years MEBEREER - 375
4456 6037
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating units was

as follows:

R 75 SR R P 5E

NEERREELBUNBEREE
me:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Air dome construction CGU REZRRSELSN 29,138 29,138
Bodewei stadium operation CGU BB EEE RS AL B 8,554 8,554
37,692 37,692

Impairment testing of goodwill EERERR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the following cash-

generating units (the “CGU") for impairment testing;

. Air dome construction CGU;

J Bodewei stadium operation CGU; and

J Trading products CGU.

EBEBEHEBENEEDDREMN
THREELBENU (REELBM) E
TRER

RERRRSELEN,

RpEMREELE -

ITRREXEEXEEFRAT
ZETEFR

175



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

GOODWILL (Cont’d)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

Air dome construction CGU

The recoverable amount of the air dome construction CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12.86% (2019: 11.85%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the air dome construction unit beyond
the five-year period is 2.6% (2019: 3.0%), which is same as the expected long-term

inflation rate. There was no impairment of goodwill.

Bodewei stadium operation CGU

The recoverable amount of the Bodewei stadium operation CGU was determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a six-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17.43% (2019: 19.06%).The growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Bodewei stadium operation unit beyond
the six-year period is 2.6% (2019: 3.0%), which is same as the expected long-term

inflation rate. There was no impairment of goodwill.

Trading products CGU
The goodwill of the trading products CGU of HK$689,000 was fully impaired in
2017.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

1 76 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

e @

BERENR (@)
RERBRR L ELEN
RERRREELBUZAREIEHE
ERECALSREEEMILERE
Lz HBREAKEBEZRERE
BRZEREGESEMEE - RER
ERARAZITTRER12.86% (2019
F11185%) HBERFHER2AE
BEEBARENEFRAZEEEXS
26% (20195 : 3.0%) » EiTEET RABEAR
ZiER - EmE L RELRE

B EEE e E L E

BEEGEEESREEL Bz AN
ElEEEREBEEALSREERIH
ERENFHZMBRERKEZR
ERERAZEREETEMEE -
REREWARAZINRER17.43%
(20194 © 19.06%) c EE N FHE®BZ
BEEGEESENRERERBZ
BEEA) 6% (20195 1 3.0%) » BES
RBARZER HELEREL ARG

REERELESLE N
RHEMBEESEMNZEmE689,000
HEITH201 7E R BRI E o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Cont’d)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the air dome construction
CGU and Bodewei stadium operation CGU for 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management determined budgeted gross margins based

on past performance and its expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant unit.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the

financial budget periods are based on the expected long-term inflation rate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of air dome
construction and Bodewei stadium operation, discount rates and growth rates are

consistent with external information sources.

R 75 SR R P 5E

e @

BERENR (@)

120205 12831 B &2019% 128318 »
RRRRREELBUKEEERE
BERTELBUZERBERER
ERARZ UTHAEERBETH
ERENZRBREREREBRPTE
ZBBEIFEREK .

HEEHE-EEERBBERRR
HHTSERNEHETREERN
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HHRE-FRERZITREBBRREHT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R R M3 5T
6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS l6. EfthEREE
Patents  Trademarks Software Total
= il 7S st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FET FHET
31 December 2020 2020 12831H
Cost at | January 2020, net of 1220205 1 B 1 H 2 Bl
accumulated amortisation Bk R etk 11,042 316 231 11,589
Additions NE - - 178 178
Disposal HE - - (65) (65)
Amortisation provided during the year ~ EFTHE 1 (10,684) (305) (72) (11,061)
Exchange realignment PE R aRE = = 16 16
At 31 December 2020 1220205 12831 H 358 [l 288 657
At 31 December 2020 $220205 12831 H
Cost 7N 39,533 1,130 837 41,500
Accumulated amortisation Rt (39,175) (1,119) (549) (40,843)
Net carrying amount RREDEE 358 I 288 657
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16.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

le. HEftEAEE @

Patents  Trademarks Software Total
&7 5] LGS # st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHT FHET FTHT

3| December 2019 2019 12831H
At | January 2019 R2019F 1818
Cost D% 39,533 1,130 925 41,588
Accumulated amortisation REHiE (17,807) (509) (385) (18,701)
Net carrying amount AREFE 21,726 621 540 22,887
Cost at | January 2019, net of 20191 BI1HZ A
accumulated amortisation bR R 5T #kiE 21,726 621 540 22,887
Additions NE - - 101 101
Amortisation provided during the year 5t 8H (10,684) (305) (403) (11392)
Exchange realignment bE D EE = - ) )
At 31 December 2019 120195128315 11,042 316 231 11,589
At 3| December 2019 and R2019FE 12831 H K
| January 2020: 2001818 :
Cost DS 39,533 1,130 1,000 41,663
Accumulated amortisation REt#H (28491) (814) (769) (30,074)
Net carrying amount AREFE 11,042 316 231 11,589
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 7. R—AMEARZKRE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TBT
Share of net assets DIEFEE 566 106
The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group's associate that TRIREERERM S B E AV
is not material: EABZHBER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Share of the associate’s loss for the year FADMEHERBEE (58) (60)
Aggregate carrying amount of RERRBERTRE
the Group's investment in the associate 2 AREAEE 566 106
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

8. FEfITRIE IR R A S E

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHAT

Prepayments BARIE 11,914 3017
Deposits wE 4,783 10,452
Loans to third parties (note) A% =HREER () 15,974 -
Other receivables HAtFEWRIA 37,649 32,892
70,320 46,361
Impairment allowance REEE (30,525) (28,622)
39,795 17,739

Analysed into SAIT=]

Current portion RENER 7 28,064 9,772
Non-current portion FEREN T D 11,731 7967

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other receivables are as

H th FE W IR R E B 1R B 2 3 1

follows: T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THExT
At beginning of year F¥) 28,622 5010
Impairment losses, net (note 6) HEEER F58 (5e) - 23317
Exchange realignment b S 5REE 1,903 295
At end of year FR 30,525 28,622

IREEXCEXEESRAH

ZETEFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

8. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (Cont’d)

The increase in the loss allowance of HK$1,903,000 for the year ended 3
December 2020 was due to foreign exchange realignment. The increase in the
loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2019 was mainly due to the
full impairment of other receivables with an aggregate gross carrying amount of
HK$23,317,000.

Note:

Included in the balance were a loan of HK$ 10,000,000 (2019: nil) guaranteed by a third party
and an unsecured loan of HK$5,974,000 (2019: nil), which bore interest at rates ranging from
8% to 10% per annum.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 SR R P 5E

19. CONTRACT ASSETS 9. BREE
31 December 31 December | January
2020 2019 2019
20204 2019 20195
12H31H 12H31H A8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TBET
Contract assets arising from: BREERE :
Construction services RIERTS 102,532 88,658 100,609
Operation, management and SE-BERHMES
other sports related services 1R R AR5 520 8l 454
103,052 89,469 101,063
Impairment BB (20,149) (8,632) (6,443)
82,903 80,837 94,620
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENE 7 76,883 69,200 77,842
Non-current portion JERE D 6,020 11,637 16,778

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from the provision
of construction services and operation, management and other sports related
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
the construction and operation, management and other sports related services.
Included in the contract assets for services are retention receivables, unbilled
trade receivables and goods prepared for specific customers that have not been
accepted by the customers. Upon completion of services rendered and acceptance
by the customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to
trade receivables. The decrease and increase in contract assets in 2020 and 2019,
respectively, were the results of the decrease and increase in the ongoing provision

of construction services at the end of each year.

BHNEERVNIRMRERTRE
& EE & HMES 5 1E R RS R
W RESBRABARGE
BUKREE EEREMESEMMR
BRINTREHFEE - REREH
BNEECRRERES RXRRE
ZRUFRERABEEZREFER
REPEMBE @ R EEHERE A
TEEREMNR BAKEGHNEEN
EREMNEAZTEZRBFIER
2020 R20I9EMNENEER D K1E
miapEREeFFESRRHEEE
AR5 B9 L K A NP2 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

CONTRACT ASSETS (Cont'd)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at the end of

BNEE (@

RBREHARKENEETENEENTE

the reporting period is as follows: ARSI T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —&FR 89,066 75273
After one year —F% 13,986 14,196
Total contract assets BHEERE 103,052 89,469

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are as

BHEEREGREGEEESNT

follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
At beginning of year F9) 8,632 6,443
Impairment losses (note 6) HEEE (i) 10,386 2,367
Exchange realignment b 0 5 1,131 (178)
At end of the year GEN 20,149 8,632

The increase in the loss allowance was mainly due to the net increase in the
contract assets in relation to several individual customers in defauft payments with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$14,250,000 (2019: HK$1 1,695,000) and
the corresponding loss allowance of HK$10,205,000 (2019: HK$2,476,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT ASSETS (Cont'd)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses as well as individually assessed for certain
customers that were with significant default indicators and credit-impaired. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the
trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on the ageing of contract assets for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. The individually impaired contract assets related to
customers that were credit-impaired or in default payments and no receivables are

expected to be recovered.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's

contract assets:

R 75 SR R P 5E

BNEE (@)
BERERMOEREBERETRE
DLt ERRAEESRE UkHH
HEBREENTRRLREEREN
ETERETERNMG -FEENE
ENRREEERNEGERDNERA
MEZRENRE FRAAENEER
BERWSRIERER-—FFEE -5
MEENBBEXRDREABEMUEE
HENETERANNGNEERN
AU BERE - et ERBRT B
BER EBKEEEURNEREH
R ESHNERBESMH BAR
R R ARASTE MR B 5 IEA AT 32
FEK - BHBEERESERAM
MEPERNENEECER LR
EETRF A PRI KRRIE

UTHSEMERBANEEEEE
R ER

2020 2019

Impairment of credit losses assessed by EERRESERERBERETGZ
credit risk portfolio using provision matrices EEBERE

Expected credit loss rate BHREEBEX 5.65% 521%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) SREARME (T8 87,868 76,056
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) RHEEEE (FET) 4,965 3962
Impairment of credit losses assessed individually BEMh 2 EEEERE
Expected credit loss rate TRHEEHBEX 100.00% 34.82%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREARE (TET) 15,184 13413
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEEE (FET) 15,184 4,670
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20, BFEKEIEREKRE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Trade receivables B S WIS 97,412 109,161
Impairment HE (29,496) (23,484)
67,916 85,677

Trade receivables & 5 U IE
Non-current IERE 119 1,670
Current TRED 67,797 84,007
67,916 85,677

Bills receivable e ZE 15

Current e 4,638 =
72,554 85,677

The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; (ii) credit terms of 30 to
90 days; and (iii) the terms of the respective construction contracts. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In the view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2020, MetaSpace and Yuedun Zhizao, two subsidiaries of the
Group, endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of RMBI467,000
(equivalent to HK$1,649,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of two to
ten months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of
Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly,
it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows
to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group's Continuing Involvement in the

Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not recognised any gain
or loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

The endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

20.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the terms set out in the contracts and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

20 EREEREREKRE @
BZBBRERREBRRBEEGM
IR s N R B 1R B 6 2 AR 0 A 1
bk

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH FER

Within | year IR 23,983 60,207
| to 2 years [Epkes 30,151 20,722
2to 3 years 283 12,803 3447
Over 3 years 3EME 979 1,301
67,916 85,677

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills receivables

are as follows:

BB RERERRERRESR
BEEPHMT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At beginning of year F9) 23,484 10,285
Impairment losses (note 6) HEEE (M) 4,184 13,783
Amount written off as uncollectible b 6o RN I e - =
Exchange realignment b S5 E 1,828 (584)
At end of year FXR 29,496 23,484

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
mainly due to the net increase in the trade receivables in relation to several
individual customers in default payments with an aggregate gross carrying amount of
HK$9,919,000 and the corresponding loss allowance of HK$5,127,000.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2019 was

mainly due to:

() A full impairment against trade receivables in relation to several individual
customers in default payments with an aggregate gross carrying amount of
HK$9,671,000, and

(i) The increase in trade receivables aged within one year with an aggregate
gross carrying amount of HK$22,248,000, resulting in a net increase in the

loss allowance of HK$2,31 1,000.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses as well as individually assessed for certain
customers that were with significant default indicators and credit-impaired. The
provision rates are based on the ageing of groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due
for more than five years and are not subject to enforcement activity. The individually
impaired trade receivables related to customers that were credit-impaired or in

default payments and no receivables are expected to be recovered.

20.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

B RIRIERERRE @
TR EEBNE S BIRRIBENGE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 20.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's

trade receivables:

As at 3| December 2020

SEREN

1R2020% 128311

Ageing
i
Less than
| year | to 2 year 2to3year  Over 3 years Total
Category 455 IEUTF 122 X} IEME H
Impairment of credt losses assessed by RIEERBASTEZ
a credit risk portfolio EEFBAE
Expected credit loss rate BEREEREX 2.50% 10.50% 22.89% 60.00% 10.51%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAE (TAT) 24599 33,688 11,114 1,205 70,606
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHREEEE (TED 616 3537 2,544 73 7420
Impairment of credit losses assessed Rt 2 EEFBHE
individually
Expected credit loss rate BEREEREX - - 63.59% 96.73% 82.35%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAE (AT - - 11,626 15,180 26,806
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEEEE (TED - - 7393 14,683 2,076
As at 31 December 2019 120195128315
Ageing
iR
Less than [t02 2103 Over 3
| year year year years Total
Category 15l IFEUF [k 123 IELE 45t
Impairment of credit losses assessed by RiEERRAGTEZ
a credit risk portfolio EEFBHAE
Expected credit loss rate BHREERER 456% 11.04% 2863% 6001% 821%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAME (TAT) 63229 23286 4646 1,348 92,509
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEESS (THR) 2882 2571 1330 809 7592
Impairment of credit losses assessed BRIh 2 EEFEHE
individually
Expected credit loss rate BHREERER - 100% 100% 7942% 95.44%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAME (TAT) - 2829 10,130 3693 16,652
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEESS (THR) - 2829 10,130 2933 15892
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21.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

21, ERERRIE
ERERAERREEZEHNT !

Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEEE !
2020 20205
Fair value
Fair value Fair value adjustments
adjustments adjustments arising from
arising from of equity debt
acquisition investments investments
of subsidiaries at FVPL at FVOCI Total
BAREE
BAREBE HEEHEH
Wi EEHEH StAHMERE
WEAR  stAB@EZ W@/
Efz RIREZ REEEZ
AREERE QABERE QAEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
At | January 2020 20201 818 1,703 729 - 2432
Deferred tax credited to FRREZAEFA
profit or loss during the year ZIEERIE (M5E10)
(note 10) (1,648) (730) - (2,378)
Deferred tax charged to other FNREMEEREA
comprehensive income during the year Bk Z 3B IR IE - - 65 65
Exchange realignment (R aAEE - 6 - 6
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 12020 12831BZ
31 December 2020 EIER B S RA8EE 55 5 65 125

IREEXCEXEESRAH

ZETEFR

191



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 2. IRETRIE (B
Deferred tax assets: BLEREEE !
2020 20205
Fair value
adjustments  Depreciation
arising allowance Loss available
from debt in excess Deferred for offsetting
investments of related revenueand  Impairment of Accrued  against future
atFVOCl  depreciation  deferred costs  financial assets  Lease liabilities purchases taxable profits Others Total
BOARE
TEEHEZH
FHARMRE AR
W2 {5 i HHHRR
REEtz HEREz  BLMAR  SREE bt
MEEAE  FERR  EEHA AE  HEARR  EHEER ZER At st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Fin Fén Fin Fn Fin Fin Tin Fin
At I January 2020 F00FIR 1B 1077 1,297 431 5397 17 4928 - m 17471
Deferred tax credited /(charged) ~ ERRERAFTA/
to profit or loss during the year (Inks) 2iESLHRB
(note 10) (HizE10) - 197 (3,03)) 2967 (%) (4.240) 8438 0 4663
Deferred tax charged to other ERREM2ERENR
comprehensive income during 2RI
the year (1,077) - - - - - - - (1,077)
Exchange realignment EREE - - 19 444 l 87 4 4 1,186
Gross deferred tax assets at HR00E12831H2
31 December 2020 BEhEAEAS - 1494 | 464 8808 8 775 8919 894 248
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21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities:

2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

21.

Fair value

adjustments

IBIERRTE ()
ERERIAELR

20194

Fair value

adjustments

arising from of equity
acquisition of investments
subsidiaries at FVPL Total
BAREBE
Wi STEEHEH
MEAE SFABTmZ
EfZ BEREZ
RABERAE AnEEHE wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TBT
At | January 2019 R2019%F 1818 3,352 - 3,352
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FERRBEAMNE GtA)

profit or loss during the year ZIRERRIE (H¥5E10)

(note 10) (1,649) 742 (907)
Exchange realignment e 2 A B - (13 (13)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2019FE 1283182

31 December 2019 EERIR A ERER 1,703 729 2432

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

21.

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 2. IRETRIE (B
Deferred tax assets: BERIBEE !
2019 20195
Fair value
adjustments  Depreciation
ansing  allowance Deferred
from debt inexcess revenueand  Impairment
investments of related deferred  of financial Lease Accrued
atFVOCl  depreciation costs assets liabilities purchases Others Total
BARER
SEEH
EFTA
Hfttzm
Wiz 2 (8%
REELZ ichi
AMEE REFEZ BEEWAR SHEE
HE  WERE  EERs AE HERE [EHRE At A5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TET TER TR TER TR TER TR
At | January 2019 201951818 1,315 73l 3115 2742 - - - 7903
Deferred tax credited to FRRBENEAZ
profit or loss during the year JRIERIE (3210)
(note 10) - 592 [,352 2,752 175 5016 429 10316
Deferred tax charged to ERREMEERGENR
other comprehensive income b 135,05
during the year (238) - - - - - - (238)
Exchange realignment ERBE = (26) (90) ©7) (€)) (88) (6) (310)
Gross deferred tax assets at 20195128312
31 December 2019 ELREEERE 1077 1297 4377 5397 172 4928 0 17671
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21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset
in the statement of financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

R 75 SR R P 5E

IBIERRTE (B
HREREN ETELERBEEK
EREAEMBRRRPETIRSH -1
R RS BN EBEERAS
ERBYDATINE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REREMHERRRAERZ
consolidated statement of financial position ﬁ ERIEEEFE 22,378 17,671
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REEEHBIRRRAEE 2
consolidated statement of financial position EERIBEE R (60) (2432)
22,318 15,239

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$6,073,000 (2019:
HK$6,268,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$179,610,000 (2019: HK$115,905,000) that will

expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that either have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised, or are not expected to generate taxable profits in the foreseeable

future to utilise the tax losses due to changes in operation.

AEEBTFTRELENRESR
6,073,0007 75 (20194 : 6,268,0007 7T)
AERARALIEHELEBRABENA
BIM R RERM G o REB R RE]
PO 3 7R 2 A B AR DUIR 88 SR 2R FE AR A i
F 2R IEE58179,610,00058 75 (2019
11159050008 7T) RN —FERF
R

HRZSERAE —REBAFER
SEEARKAKRAEENHERE
ERIEEERRENZNEB AR E
o RRAEEZHMBARAFTERAR
AREEERR G UBBRERS
B HAMZSEREDELERERE
Eo

ITRREXEEXEEFRAT
ZETEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 2. RERIE (@)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: M IEEEENIRLERIEE &I R E

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Tax losses MIEEE 129,430 122,173

Deductible temporary differences GIE{RE oS3 3,854 4,160

133,284 126,333

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from | January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries

established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from | January 2008.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 SR R P 5E

DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 20, JEERIE 4
At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes 1220205 12831 B BiEsL A E B K
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding I3 BT Y, 32 B /B8 A B B AN TR R
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion A > B [B] 2 A1) 78 5 O TR0 AR B SR AR AL
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries wil MB-ARBDEERA  ZEWEBL
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2020, there was B Al B AR AR A K B] gk 2 ki Al o 1%
no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2019: nil) for taxes that would be 200 128318 B A EENE A
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no Bz IFEORA 2 BARIEMELE
liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted due to the availability of AIEARRERIRILERIBEEE (20194 !
double taxation relief. ) OWITAEERNER HZE
BEL AEEBAMBIMIERE
afio
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by ARBERAEERKERE TSI HE
the Company to its shareholders. IFTSIRER
INVENTORIES n #&
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHATT
Raw materials R 13,823 7479
Finished goods BURLSh 28 136
13,851 7615

ITRREXEEXEEFRAT
ZETEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

yX}

BARBESEAEESHHARME
ERENEMEE BRAABENE
BEEFHABRNERMEE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET

Debt investments at fair value through BAnEEFEEHEHFA

other comprehensive income HttxElm 2 GHBRE

Current Vit 23,573 29,098
Non-current EIRiE 25,073 67576
48,646 96,674

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BANBEFEEHEHFA

BEnNEREE

Current — wealth management products e — B E R 31,759 72,056
Non-current — an equity investment R —RAKE 23,791 25203
55,550 97,259

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were listed

corporate bond investments. They were classified as financial assets at FVOCI as

their contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding and they were held within a business model with

the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. During

the year, the investment income recognised in profit or loss and the fair value loss

recognised in other comprehensive income or loss amounted to HK$5,284,000

(2019: HK$8,069,000) and HK$884,000 (2019: HK$ | 350,000), respectively.
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BAnBEGFEEHE;AHMS
BRENEMEER LT ARESEK
B -ZERENHNRGNREREE
REEREREERAESHEMRLE
BERANREARERERHENE
BEARE MoBAEAABES
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RREMEERGEREDINANEE
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23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included wealth management
products which were issued by major banks in Mainland China. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVPL as their contractual cash flows are
not solely payments of principal and interest. During the year, the investment income
arising from wealth management products recognised in profit or loss amounted to
HK$4,560,000 (2019: HK3,322,000).

The Group's equity investment represents an equity investment trading on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotation Company in the PRC and was classified
as financial assets at FVPL as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. During the year a negative
investment return arising from the changes in fair value of the equity investment
recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$2,921,000 (2019: positive investment
return of HK$2,968,000).

During the year, the Group purchased and disposed of certain debt investments

with an aggregate investment returns of HK$ 1,997,000 (2019: nil).

R 75 SR R P 5E

BAREEFEAREHFAHME
ERENEREE RARBEHE
BHEEF AENEMEE @)

BRARBESAERHEFHF AR
THEEQETEAMETEZRTES
MEMER ZSTMEERNEGR
HeRBUIFERTE RABAM:
mas P EREANBEFELRE
B ARTNEREE -FR N8
mREDEMERPISREWAR
4,560,000/ 7T, (201 94F : 3,322,000/ 7T) ©

AEEBNRALERRPEZEH/)
CERNEZRAABEZRAKEL
PERBRARBEFEEHEFH A
BaMetHMEE ARAXEET mE
EZBRAMEZANRGEERAAEEK
HHBEE - FA REBERINER
REANBEEHELERERRA
2,921,000 7T (20194 © [ER & [O3R
296800058 7T) ©

FROAEBRBEREESETER
K& K EDRABEEA,997,00078 7T
(20194 : 4®) o

ITRREXEEXEEFRAT
ZETEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

24.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK BALANCES %4 ZRERITEREIRE RIR TR
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTiR 116,547 128,657
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 26,210 5,584
142,757 134,241

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$91,640,000 (2019:
HK$110,786,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

The Group's restricted bank deposits are used for the performance guarantee in

relation to certain purchase contracts.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 5. BRRATRERENR
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting RIBESHR REEZHHANEITH
period, based on the invoice date or issue date, is as follows: HEHNEZEAMRIERENZEEN
RRECOMTIN T ¢
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHATT
Within | month KEVEIAA 30,680 55322
| to 2 months | E2(8 8 13,732 25,288
2 to 3 months pEX!E)=! 13,992 7,718
Over 3 months MEALE 32,325 19,168
90,729 107,49
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The trade payables are BRRNRERBNRERA TR
normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days upon receipts of suppliers’ invoices, BZRAMEBE—RENZEMRRERE
while bills payable are normally settled on terms of 180 days upon issuance of bills. ZBIEOHANLET MENRE—®K
AN BTREEI80H LT o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS % HtERERES R
2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Byt FHET FHET
Contract liabilities BHAR @) 22916 7,022
Deposits received Biltize 1,079 1,020
Other payables HAtpEI IR (b) 32,045 32,804
Accruals BsER 30,408 29,196
Total a5t 86,448 70,042

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

% HfttEIRIERESER

Notes: Mzt
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BNaGEFENT:
3| December 3| December | January
2020 2019 2019
20204 20194 20194
12H31H 12H31H I1A1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THET
Short-term advances received from customers — EUNEF FZHIE
Air dome construction services RIEZERTS 19,822 3817 797
Operation and management services and other =& K BIERHE U R H S
sports and entertainment services IR EERR 5 3,033 2,898 4,303
Sales of goods HEGm 6l 307 103
Total contract liabilities BRAREER 2916 7022 5203
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver goods and BHNEEBERERIRVER RHK
render air dome construction and operation and management services. The increase fR 2236 AR 75 e ' 48 T B B R %5 LB
in contract liabilities in 2020 and 2019 was mainly due to the increase in short- BEZHAEA R © 20208 K201 9F &M &
term advances received from customers in relation to the provision of air dome BN FEHRFRMIEERE
construction services at the end of the year. EERR 7S 1 & B W ER B K2 B B S
e
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one year. b)) HMEMRIERE  FHHRA
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27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 7. StESRITREMER
2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BIRFIZ() 515 FET  BEEAER 55 TEr
Current i
Bank loans-unsecured RTem-EiHE 2020
- - - 52 20206 5572
Bank loans-unsecured RTEN-BIEH 2020
- - - LPR-0.25 20205 I1,144
Bank loans-secured RIER-BEH 2021 2020
LPR+0.915 202E 3,268 [PR+0915 20208 12816
Other borrowing-unsecured*  ELftfE I —F On demand On demand
7 BEX 3,260 7 BEX 3057
Other borrowing-unsecured®* Bt — B4 #ex On demand 2020
435 REX 238 435 20006 891
6,766 33480
Non-current JEEER
Bank loans-secured RITER B LPR+0915 2022203 20212023
-LPR+1.375 2002EF2023E 30,592 LPR+0915 2021 E20235E 22,600
37,358 56,080
< The balance represents a loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of * FAERIEEAEE—FRB AR Z
the Group. FFERRREN G
*  BREBEEERBESSERE

*k  The balance represents a loan from an unrelated third party.

Ry

o

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 7. SHESRTREMER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Analysed into: vaLiip=I
Bank loans repayable: RERBITEN
Within one year —&FR 3,268 29,532
After one year —&Ep 30,592 22,600
33,860 52,132
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEHEAMER
Within one year or on demand —FERFEEK 3,498 3948
37,358 56,080
Notes: Mzt

(@)  The Group's secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period were secured by
mortgages over the Group's right-of-use assets and buildings, which had an aggregate
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of approximately HK$90,277,000
(2019: HK$77,487,000).

(b)  Asat 3| December 2019, the unsecured bank loans of approximately HK$ 16,716,000

were guaranteed by unrelated third parties.

(9 Al of the Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB.
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28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 3R R Mt oE
SHARE CAPITAL 8 RRE
Shares Eah)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: ERE
4,000,000,000 (2019:4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,0008% (20194 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each 4,000,000,000%)
SREE0SETHNE BR 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRTHME
1,302,019,000 (2019: 1,302,019,000) 1,302,019,0008% (20194 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each 1,302,019,0008%)
SIREE005 BT E B 6,510 6510

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

EREIRELEFENT ¢

Number of Share
shares in issue capital
BE#1T

REE R

HK$'000

THET

At | January 2019 R2019%F 1818 306,430,400 6,532

Share options exercised (note (a)) TR (M5 @) 3,338,600 17

Shares repurchased and cancelled (note (b)) BREL ReFHEERN (HEEb)) (7,750,000) (39)
At 31 December 2019, | January 2020 and R2019FE 1283152020 1B 1B &

3| December 2020 2020412831 H 1,302,019,000 6510

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

Shares (Cont'd)
Notes:

©) In 2019, the subscription rights attaching to 3,338,600 share options were exercised
at the subscription price of HK$0.764 per share (note 29), resulting in the issue of
3,338,600 shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$2,551,000. An amount of approximately HK$ 1,658,000 was transferred from the
share-based payment reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of the

share options.

(b)  In 2019, the Company purchased and cancelled 7,750,000 of its shares on the Stock
Exchange for a total consideration of approximately HK$3,318,000.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company's directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, the Company's shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder in the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 3 December 201 | and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
| 2-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'

approval in a general meeting.
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are

subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date
of offer; upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ ! in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from the date of offer of the share options or the

expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier:

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the

date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

2.

R 75 SR R P 5E

FERRtEstEl ()

BRYERAEF TETHAERE
ERRAMNEEOHMBALZBRE
RSB IFRITESTE A IS
REFNBRHE HRFAATDE
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EEEEREZETRG 20 1%HRER
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REREZ 2L0 N 24 B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

FERRtEstEl ()

UM BEARESEHRTEZER
e

2019

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options

mntEEs T3
TEE BkERE THE BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

per share per share
BRET T sRET T
At | January iNIE=! 0.764 37,025 0.764 40,364
Exercised during the year FRBITEE - - 0.764 (3,339)
At 3| December ®128318 0.764 37,025 0.764 37,025

The exercise price and exercise period of the share options outstanding as at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 3| December 2020 and 2019

12020 52019 12831 H

Number of options

Exercise price*

REBEHRR BARTEBEREZITE
BRITEBOT

Exercise period

FERRE#E 7B 171E8A
‘000 HK$
per share
Fhg SkET

note

37,025 0.764 i3

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or

bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

Note:

The first 30% of the options granted were vested in one year from 8 April 2016; the second
40% of the options granted were vested in two years from 8 April 2016 and the remaining
30% of the options granted were vested in three years from 8 April 201 6. Upon the lapse of
the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 7 April 2026.

During the year; the Group did not recognise any share option expense in respect of
share options granted (2019: share option expense of HK$765,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 37,025,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
37,025,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$ 185,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 37,025,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately
2.63% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

2.

R 75 SR R P 5E
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DERERRTE-RIEAABRTER
ERE BROTEHATENBRELER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 79 to 80 of the financial statements.

(@) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents (i) the differences between the considerations
of equity transactions and the corresponding carrying amounts of non-
controlling interests; and (i) the differences between the nominal amount
of share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of share
capital of the then subsidiaries transferred to the Company pursuant to the

reorganisation of the Group that took place in 201 I.

(b)  Statutory and legal reserves
Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required
to allocate 10% of their net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50%
of their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses or
to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is

maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.

(c)  Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised or transferred to accumulated losses should the

related options expire.
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3.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 3l

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The Group's subsidiary, Swift Knight Limited®, together with its subsidiaries, has

material non-controlling interests, details of which are set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

BEEAIFEREZNIDERIE
AF

REBHTEBABSWift Knight Limited &
FHEMB AR ERERFFERER

BREEEHIINOT
2020 2019
Percentage of equity interests held FREREDAERER D (%)
by non-controlling interests (%) 20% 20%
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling NEEFEREDNEANBE
interests (HK$'000) SRETD, (22,243) (2493)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests  FFIERR R T 7Y ¥R & HA AR M REH4EER
at the end of the reporting period (HK$'000) (F#70) 93,173 109,543
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ZETEFR

211



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R F5 SRR P 51

31. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 3l BEEXZEREZNBIEEHE
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Cont'd) AE) @)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of Swift Knight TR RSwift Knight Limited Sz B B A
Limited and its subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company BN BENBE -FIREEEAE
eliminations: ETERARBHETNEEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT THT
Revenue W 115,384 162,169
Total cost and expenses B AR B2 (158,415) (I71,197)
Loss for the year FREE (43,031) (9,028)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRLEBBEEE (41,562) (10,073)
Current assets MEBE 313,255 454,468
Non-current assets FERBEE 190,784 186,670
Current liabilities itk =R (431,952) (535,617)
Non-current liabilities FrRBmaR (43,441) (35313)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities REEEME/ (A BeEREFHE (44,325) 62,607
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities KREEEME/ (FTR) REREFE 34,937 (50,185)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities MBEEME/ P ReREFHE (27,719) 44,755
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEEXEH  XE FE (4,354) (908)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ IRERBEEBYILMN, (/L) F48 (41,461) 56,269

& Swift Knight Limited is an investment holding company which indirectly holds a 51.66%

equity interest in MetaSpace which, together with its subsidiaries, is principally engaged

in the air dome-related business and sports stadium operation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES R HEMBAF
2019
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE
Investment properties (note |3) REME (Hi5E13) 22,263
Other payables and accruals HitE I RIERE &R (49
Lease liabilities (note 14) HEaE (sE14) (21,323)
Non-controlling interests FEER R 212
1,108
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAREE (1,108)
Satisfied by: mAAR
Cash Re -
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal ERLERBLAENRERREEE
of subsidiaries is as follows: YRPRA R DI
2019
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration HeAE -
Less: Cash consideration of the prior year's disposals B FRNEBFFELEZREAE
received during the year 7,132
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of MEENBAEZRERREE
the disposal of subsidiaries BYRA 7,132

SERE (AR EEERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@)  Major non-cash transactions @ EBEXEREXRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and FRNAEREARFHER
lease liabilities of HK$4,401,000 (2019: HK$4,748,000) and HK$4,401,000 FNERAEEEREEERZ
(2019: HK$4,748,000), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for FEREFE DA %4,401,000%
buildings. 75 (20194 : 4,748,000 7T) &
4,401,000 7T (20194F : 4,748,000
D) °
(b)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities b) MEFDELENREED
2020 2020
Interest-bearing
bank and
Other payables other
and accruals borrowings Lease liabilities
Hit A HRIER HERT
&R HftfEm HE&R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAT THAT
At | January 2020 1202061818 70,042 56,080 21935
Changes from financing cash flows MERERELY (2,854) (22,567) (5,779)
New leases Giipish=1 = = 4401
Termination of a lease RIS = = (2,769)
Foreign exchange movement SNEEE) = 3,845 1272
Interest expense FIEH% 2,848 = 561
Changes from operating and KERRBLTHES
investing activities 16412 - -
Covid-19-related rent concessions RELBANINERS
from lessors HRHEESR - - (675)
At 31 December 2020 120206124318 86:448 37,358 19.946

3. FERERERME
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21 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020



33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Cont’d)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Cont d)

2019

3.

REREMERME @

b) MEZDHELENEEES @)

2019

Other Interest-bearing

payables bank and
and other Lease Loan from
accruals borrowings liabilities  a related party
HittEAMIER  StERTK
Rt ER Htnfdw HERRE BABMEEWN
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAT TAT TET TERT
At | January 2019 R2019F 1818 46,871 4944 39,505 1228
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREEH (1,536) 51,875 (3/478) (1,296)
New leases MHE = = 4,748 =
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32) HE—BNBARE (iFE32) (44) — (21,323) —
Foreign exchange movement SNEEH - (739) (1,009) 21
Interest expense ) SR 1,619 - 3492 47
Changes from operating KERRBITHES
and investing activities 23,132 - - -
At 3| December 2019 12019124318 70042 56,080 21935 -

IREEXCEXEESRAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  33. #&ZAIREHRERMNE @
(Cont’d)
(c)  Total cash outflow for leases: () THERESRMULLLEEE:
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as FABREREXRNEERER
follows: HABRETT -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Within operating activities RS EB) R 333 636
Within financing activities REEEP 5779 3478
6,112 4114
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES M HAEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

COMMITMENTS 3% i
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting FEEREREMANEREENT !
period:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETNERES
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 6,553 2,531
Capital contributions payable to an associate Em—EEEATEE 4,160 =
10,713 2,531
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS % RMARS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the RZEMHRRAMEMF RS
Group had the following transactions with related parties: oh > REBBIRAM S ETIU TR S ¢
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest expenses to a director mM—BEEZMHEHX - 47
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: FEFFEEEASHM
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term employee benefits RHRES RN 2,186 2,330
Equity-settled share option expense Mg E iR R - 244
Post-employment benefits EEREBREN 90 141
2,276 2,715
Further details of the directors’ and the chief executive's emoluments are included EREERFIBETHAEME 2 E—
in note 8 to the financial statements. FHIBEN M BRRMEES

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end

3. EWMTIRER

R 75 SR R P 5E

BENERMIANRERRZIREE

of the reporting period are as follows: AW -
2020 2020
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at ~ Financial assets
fair value at fair value
through through other
profit or loss  comprehensive
— designated as income Financial
such upon initial — debt assets at
recognition investments  amortised cost Total
BRAREE BRAREE
FERHEE HERHEH
FAREZ sAHEM
EHMEE 2EWE g
—EHRHERE ZERMEE MGt E
fEHARIETE -EBRE ZEWMEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FTET
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFEEHEES
HABHZEHMEE 55,550 - - 55,550
Financial assets at FVOC| BARBEFEEHEES
SARMEEKGZ
TREE - 48,646 - 48,646
Bills receivable EWEE - 4,638 - 4,638
Trade receivables B 5 RINHIE - - 67916 67916
Financial assets included EPNERE RNl
in prepayments, other MIEREMEER
receivables and other assets ETRHEE - - 27,756 27,756
Restricted bank deposits SRRHIRITER - - 26,210 26210
Cash and bank balances R& RRITHR - - 116,547 116,547
55,550 53,284 238,429 347,263
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) 7. EmIRERN @
2020 (Cont'd) 20204 ()
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost EHEE-HEBERETEZZHE
/]

Total

# st

HK$'000

FHET

Trade and bills payables BZRMNNEBERENRE 90,729

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SFARMEMNRERESERAZE/MEE 33,124

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t BER1T R EMAERR 37,358

Lease liabilities HEAR 19,946

181,157
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) 7. EmIRERN @
2019 20195
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value at fair value
through through other
profit orloss  comprehensive
— designated as income Financial
such upon initial — debt assets at
recognition investments amortised cost Total
BRAEE BRAEE
STEEHEE SEEHED
STAB@mZ stAEA
THMEE 2EKEZ Y
=R THEE MASE
fEBRIEE —-RHRE ZEHEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TAT
Financial assets at FVPL BAnBEEEHES
SABHZEMEE 97,259 - - 97,59
Financial assets at FVOC| BAnBEEEHES
SAHMEZERTZ
TREE - 96,674 - 96,674
Trade receivables BZ WA - - 85,677 85,677
Financial assets included STATBMRIE EER
in prepayments, other MERAEMEEZ
receivables and other assets ERMEE = = 14,494 14,494
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRRITER - - 5,584 5584
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHEER = - 128,657 128,657
97,259 96,674 234412 428,345
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) 7. EmIRERN @
2019 20195
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost EHEE-HEBERETEZZHE
/]
Total
Ha st
HK$'000
FTHT
Trade and bills payables B RAREBERENER 107,496
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SFARMEMNRERESERAZE/MEE 33824
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t BER1T R EMAERR 56,080
Lease liabilities HEAR 21,935
219,335
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38 2£RIBEZAAEBERAAEBERER

INSTRUMENTS
AEBZERTIAZREEBRANE
B EHREEARANBEREREER

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other

than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair value, are as

follows: 58 g5
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ARfEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FATT FET FTAT
Financial assets TREE
Debt investments at fair value BARBEG=EEHES)
through other comprehensive StARMEEWREZ
income RHKRE 48,646 96,674 48,646 96,674
Financial assets at fair value BRARBHEFEEHES
through profit or loss SFAEENEMEE 55,550 97,259 55,550 97,259
Bills receivable eSS 4,638 - 4,638 -
Financial assets included in STATERIE Y EfAEUR
prepayments, other receivables  TRIBREMBEZ
and other assets, TREE
non-current portion JFERENT D 83 901 73 703
Trade receivables, B 5 EWHRIE
non-current portion FERENT D 19 1,670 109 1,539
109,036 196,504 109,016 196,175
Financial liabilities EMaR
Interest-bearing bank and StERITREMBER
other borrowings 37,358 56,080 37,358 56,080
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances, restricted
bank deposits, the current portion of trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade and bills payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to their

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's chief financial officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each

reporting date, the valuation is approved by the chief financial officer:

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of bills receivable and the non-current portion of trade receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the
Group's own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

as at 3| December 2020 were assessed to be insignificant.
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market prices. The
fair value of an equity investment included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss has been estimated using a market approach through the use of
comparable companies’ market multiples. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, and to calculate
an appropriate price multiple, that is, enterprise value to research and development
expenses (“EV/R&D") multiple to calculate the enterprise value of the target
enterprise. The enterprise value was adjusted by the surplus, non-operating assets
and excess liabilities to arrive an equity value of the target enterprise, which was
then discounted by consideration of lack of liquidity compared to the comparable
companies based on investment-specific facts and circumstances. The directors
believe that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which is
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change
in fair values, which is recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that it was the

most appropriate value at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of wealth management products with fixed maturity dates included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have been determined by the
income approach mainly based on the spot yield curves of China AAA corporate
bonds with the corresponding observable yields, the implied liquidity spread of the
prices on the issue dates and the recoverable amounts of investments of identical
or similar assets in active markets. The fair value of redeemable wealth management
products included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is based on

their principal amounts and expected return rates at inception.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

EMITAZARBERAAEBERER
@

FR2020EK2019E 128310 £REE
BREDMEENEATATRRZHA
EMENT

Valuation Significant unobservable  Value of significant Sensitivity of
technique inputs unobservable inputs  fair value to the inputs
BERRURE BERFITEHE
(Bl WARE WABEEE ARBEBBABRNBRKE
Equity investment Valuation Average EV/R&D 49 (2019: 112) 5% (2019: 5%) increase/decrease
multiples multiple of peers in multiple would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by HK$ 1,166,000
(2019: HK$1,307,000)
BRAKRE hEEHK FIZETEVRIOEE 49 (2019F 1 112) 5% (20194 : 5%) EHIEM,/ R
Do%i B A RBEEM, A
1,166,000 7T (20194F : 1,307,007
7T)
Discount for lack of 1 6% 19 (2019: 1%)
liquidity (2019: 16%) increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/ increase in fair value
by HK$268,000 (2019: HK$305,000)
HRZ R 16% 1% (20195 : 1%)
ig= (20194 : 16%) TR, B 196 B A A B

The discount for lack of liquidity represents the amounts of premiums and discounts
determined by the Group that market participants would take into account when

pricing the investment.
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

R 75 SR R P 5E

B ESMIAZARBERARBEER
#
ARBERR
TRITAEESHIAZ AN EE
SHEEA

BAABEAEZEE .
12020512831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTRAETANEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RiEE EXUERZR E-b )
miZHIRE BAHNE BROBANE
(F118) ($2/8) (53/8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET THExT THExT
Debt investments at FVOCI BANEEFERH
gt ARMEE
WmZ EBRE 48,646 - - 48,646
Financial assets at FVPL BANEEFERH
85t ABmhY
TREE - 31,759 23791 55,550
Bills receivable et = 4,638 5 4,638
48,646 36,397 23,791 108,834
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Assets measured at fair value: (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019

38 FMIAZAREBERALBERER
@
ARBERKR &)
BARBENEZEE . (B)
12201912831 H

Fair value measurement using

FERAUTEBRETANEEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERE EAITER BARARA]
mIEHERE BAHE BEHAZRE
€11=) (%B2/) (%B3E) A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET THExT THExT
Debt investments at FVOCI BANEEFERH
gt ARMEE
Wiz BEKRE 96,674 - - 96,674
Financial assets at FVPL BANEEFERH
85t ABmhY
ERMEE 26,303 45,753 25203 97,259
122,977 45,753 25,203 193,933
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38 SRTEZAABERAABEELSR

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) @
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) ARBERK &)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as FABERABESENEHNT .
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Equity investment at FVPL: BANEEFEBHEEHA
BmZRAERE !
At | January RIAIH 25,203 -
Purchases BB - 22,202
Amount recognised in other expenses and losses 5T ARz Bz RSB 2
included in profit or loss TER (2,921) 2968
Exchange realignment bE 2 528 1,509 33
At 3| December 128318 23,791 25,203
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 3| 120205 12831 B &20194 128318 »
December 2020 and 3| December 2019. FEETEETARANBEFEZSR
mEE-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level FN eRBEEREHEBRESE IBR
| and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and FREZEORBBANBEFE T
financial liabilities (2019: nil). FEAFEHFEE (019F : #) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 F5 IR R MIEE

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Assets for which fair value are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2020

EMIRZANBERAAEERR
@

RRBEER (&)
ERBEALEBEZEE

2020128318

Fair value measurement using

ERUTREETANEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RiEE EXUERE E-b )
hiZARE WARE BRBAUE
(B 1/8) (582/8) (83/E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TBxT
Financial assets included stATEARIE S Hit
in prepayments, other FESTRR I e L A
receivables and other assets, BEZEMEE
non-current portion IEREE D = 73 = 73
Trade receivables, B 5 I
non-current portion FERENE - 109 = 109
- 182 - 182
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Assets for which fair value are disclosed: (Cont'd)

As at 3| December 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

EMIRZANBERANEERR
@

RREERESR ()
ERBEARBEZEE: ()

2019 12831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTEBETAABESE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REE EATHE EAFAIEE
mHEHRE WA A BE
&1 (52/8) (%308 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TBxT
Financial assets included stATEARIE S 2t
in prepayments, other FESTRR I e L A
receivables and other assets, BEZEMEE
non-current portion IERE D = 703 = 703
Trade receivables, B 5 I
non-current portion FERENE - 1,539 = 1,539
- 2242 - 2242
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RATS R R M 5k
38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 38 SRTITEZAABERAABEELSR
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) #)
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) ARBEER B
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERBERAABEZEE:
As at 31 December 2020 2020 128315

Fair value measurement using

ERUTREETANEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RiEE EXUERE ERAH
mIEHRE WARE BRBARE

(F1/8) (528 (53/E) Hest
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT TBxT
Interest-bearing bank and other & B IRTT M HANER
borrowings - 37,358 = 37,358
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38.

39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (Cont'd):

As at 3| December 2019

38.

R 75 SR R P 5E

EMTAZARBERAAEBERER
@

ARBERK &)
EREARBEZEE (B)
122019412831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEBRETANEEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REE EATERER EAFAEE
mIEHERE WA BT AR
(%1/8) (528) (538) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Interest-bearing bank and other & EIRTT M EAER
borrowings - 56,080 - 56,080
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 3. MBEREEBEFEREE

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank balances,
debt investments and financial assets at FVPL. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and

bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and

agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

FEEZIEERIAOQERER
RITHES BEHRREUARBRAREBE
SAERHEHAABOZERMEE-
ZETMIAZIZANHATER
ZEBEREER AEERZEHM
EHEEREE WEBZRERER
BUEBEUARBZBUIRERENER
B ZSEMEERRRNERESL
BHEE-

AEESRIRZ TBARATZA
2 NERR EHARR DA A
- EFERHRAEEREREA
B2 B BB TS0

ITRREXEEXEEFRAT
ZETEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)
Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group's policy is

to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax

(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

3. HBRRBEREREE @

GIEIELA
AEREENTENXESRABER
BAEENTIRERER AEEHN
HRBEAERKRIBREREAER
HA S o

TREMEPREAEMAZRRFE0
BRT AEBRRAGEZH RN
AR IEEBNSRE DT (ERET

BEMNTE) o

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in loss
basis points before tax

HEEm,/ PRI AIAS
GR) s/ GEL)

HK$'000
FET
2020 20205
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 339
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (339)
2019 2019%F
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 466
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (466)
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks were primarily related to bank
balances mainly denominated in RMB and United States Dollars (“USD") and debt
investments denominated in USD. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring

the movements in the foreign currency rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in the RMB and the USD exchange rate (against
HKS$), with all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax (due to

changes in the fair value of monetary assets).

39.

R 75 SR R P 5E

MHRREEBRREE @

HEE Fa Bz

AEREEBZIERBERIRER
MAR®BRERT (MEm)) sHEZR
THRERUETHEZBBRE -E
EEBEAILEINER ABK - HEB
BYGEEIINEEREHLIERINER

B o
AN

TEREHAEMEEMITERETEMH
BRT RRSBREEBORKRA
BE EREREEZARBELZD)
HARBERETER (RB7T) Mk
BEEFNBREDN -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in loss
RMB/USD rate before tax
UN:L 4
ETER BRI RIS R
R/ (FE) 1@/ GEL)
% HK$'000
% THET
2020 20205
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB HETE ARKEEZE 5 (15,675)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB HETE AREHE ) 15,675
If the HK$ weakens against the USD MABTRETRE 5 (4,256)
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD WATRETHE (5) 4,256
2019 20194
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB HEATEARKEZE 5 (15,675)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB WEATEARKEAE (5) 15,675
If the HK$ weakens against the USD WATEETEE 5 (5,873)
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD WA TEETHE (5) 5873
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk
based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information
unless other information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end
staging classification as at 31 December. For debt investments, the Group also
monitors them by using external ratings. The amounts presented are gross carrying

amounts for financial assets.
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EERER
AERERNLKEERFNE=
ETRG - RRAEENER BHMA
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA 35 SR R MY 5E

EERR &)

AND POLICIES 39 HMBEEREEEEREE @)

RAEBERERFFER (B)

2020128318

|2-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 P 748
FERE FEBEBEERE
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
REERI [:1:9) PR3 it % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT T T#7m THET TET
Debt investments at FVOCI BAnBEFEAELZY
SIARMEENEZ
EBRE 40,610 7,179 857 - 48,646
Trade receivables* 8 5 ElE: - - - 97,412 97412
Bills receivable e 4638 - - - 4,638
Financial assets included in STABfSE AEN
prepayments, other receivables ~ FUBREMEEMN
and other assets SHEE
— Normal** —[EE* 27,756 - - - 27,756
~ Doubtfuf¥* —fie - - 30,525 - 30,525
Restricted bank deposits and RRERITESUR
cash and bank balances RE KRR
— Not yet past due — KB 142,757 - - - 142,757
215,761 7,179 31,382 97412 351,734
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019

3. HBRRBEREREE @

EERK &)
RARERERFERIER (8)

R20195E 128318

|2-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1285 5
EEEE FERBHEESRSE
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEER | ReER PeER3 BEh% Mt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAR TET FER TER TAR
Debt investments at FVOCI BAnBEFEAELZY
sTARMREREZ
EBRE 91215 5459 - - 96,674
Trade receivables* BEEE - - = 109,161 109,161
Financial assets included in STABfTE EEN
prepayments, other receivables  FUBREMEEMN
and other assets SHEE
— Normal** —[EE* 14494 - - - 14494
~ Doubtfuf¥* —Tie - - 2862 - 28622
Restricted bank deposits and cash X RHIiRT AR
and bank balances RERBTER
~Not yet past due — KA 134241 - - - 134241
239950 5459 28622 109,161 383,192
& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for kd MAEERAKERERZNE S

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the
financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there
is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising

from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 39.

(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity

planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and

financial assets (e.g, trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility through bank and other borrowings and a loan from a related party.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

R 75 SR R P 5E

MHRREEBRREE @

RBEEEE
AEEXAERRADMAEIARR
ExRRER ZTAREZEHEH
TAKERMEE BB ZEWREKE
WRE) NI hEREEELN
st RERE -

AEENERREBRITREMBR
LUK R 5 ERMURFRE R &ML
REEIER T

FEBETHMEENRSPARBRTR
M &R AP ER B BRERIR AT T

2020
On demand
or within | year Over | year Total
mERY
R—FRA —&EN0E a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FAERT FTHERT
Trade and bills payables ERRORIEREMNRE 90,729 - 90,729
Financial liabilities included in sTAE MBI RIER
other payables and accruals R ERANERMER 33,124 - 33,124
Interest-bearing bank and stRIRITREMEMN
other borrowings 8,356 32,158 40,514
Lease liabilities HEAR 3,458 26,373 29,831
135,667 58,531 194,198
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 39.

HEBRREEBRREE @

(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) REBEEEE (B)
2019
On demand
or within | year Over | year Total
BERD
R—FRA —FMNE 85
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TBT
Trade and bills payables ERRORIEREMNRE 107,496 - 107,496
Financial liabilities included in other STAE AR R 5t
payables and accruals ERNEmMER 33,824 = 33824
Interest-bearing bank and stRIBITREMMEMN
other borrowings 35,548 23,864 59,412
Lease liabilities HE&E 11223 21,294 32517
188,091 45,158 233249
Capital management BXER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios

in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 3| December 2020 and 3| December 2019.
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group monitors capital using the ratio of total liabilities to total assets. The

ratios of total liabilities to total assets as at the end of the reporting periods were as

R 75 SR R P 5E

FEEERBERRUBEEZILE
EEER - RNIREHAR BEERUAE

follows: BEZLERNT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Total liabilities mes 244,543 268469
Total assets BEE 653,789 710,140
Ratio bR 37% 38%

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD RERRERIA

On 16 December 2020, the Company, Pieta Investment Limited and its guarantor
(the “Vendor”) entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendor conditionally agreed
to sell its entire 20% equity interest in Swift Knight Limited (“Swift Knight" or
“the target company”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for a
consideration of HK$28,000,000, which was to be satisfied wholly by the allotment
and issue of 106,000,000 shares by the Company at a price of HK$0.2642. The
Company decided to acquire the remaining 20% shares of the target company
because the board of directors are optimistic about the future of the business
carried out by the subsidiaries of the target company, and the acquisition of the
remaining 20% of the target company will help the Company achieve its goal
of optimising the overall equity structure. The transaction was completed on ||
February 2021, and accordingly, Swift Knight became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Except for the matter described above, there were no significant events subsequent
to 31 December 2020 which may materially affect the Group's operating and
financial performance as of the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements.

2020 128 168 » &R/A &)~ Pieta
Investment Limited sz EIERA (TE A1)
STUREEER R B AARAR
HRBKEMESBHRERAREER
RARBIIEZEMBABISwIift Knight
Limited (TSwift Knight 1T BAZAE]) B9
2 ER20%8% 1 » £1828,000,0007 75 H A
ATBIBIZ0264278 0 2 BIS AL 3 e 3
17106,000,0008% Bz 17 B9 75 TR BUE (T
RABRTE WS B 124 B F8R20% 8%
B HHREEEHERQATAWER
SIPTERNEBN KRR L BRLER
B BIRE B R AR RIER0%RERE
BAARERBCERBREERENE
oz RZER2021528 1 1B B
Swift Knight(l Itb ik 2 28 A B9 2 B /8
NS

am

PR L BRI B 20205 12831 H
Bt AT AERREZSR
B BRELERBNEERMBR
REMEATENERFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 4. FRRZHBRAR
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of RRNBRHREERZFBRRRE R
the reporting period is as follows: I
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 4 6
Investments in subsidiaries PRBAREIZERE 3,588 3,588
Debt investments at fair value through other BANBEFEEHEH A
comprehensive income HttzmRaNEBRE 25,073 67,576
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE &= 773 622
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 29,438 71,792
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B I8 293,192 314,482
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets BATIE HtRNRERHMEE 170 170
Debt investments at fair value through other BARBESEEEHEFHFTA
comprehensive income Hit AR ENEBRE 23,573 29,098
Cash and bank balances BE RIFITHEER 27,455 21,614
Total current assets MEBEERE 344,390 365,364
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41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R R M5
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd) FREZIFIRAR B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Due to subsidiaries B ARMIE 13,576 17,565
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBERETER 1,929 2,240
Tax payable RATRIE 1,784 888
Total current liabilities TMEBEEE 17,289 20,693
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEERE 327,101 344,671
Net assets BERE 356,539 416,463
EQUITY T
Share capital gz 6,510 6510
Reserves (note) et (fis) 350,029 409,953
Total equity s 356,539 416,463
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kT

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)  4l. ZATIZMIERAE @)
Note: 5T
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: EABEEHRENT
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Share-based  through other
Share payment comprehensive Accumulated
premium reserve income losses Total
BAREE
StEEHEH
stARMZE
LUBRAR 7% Wiz
EHERY EHMEE
BRAD & B IREE [AREERE REtEEHE A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT FHET FHET FHERT
Balances at | January 2019 IR2019% 1 B | B4R 674272 18473 - (241921) 450,824
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEBEESE
for the year - - (163) (40,729) (40,892)
Share options exercised BiTERERE 4,193 (1,658) = = 2,535
Equity-settled share-based DU s E R U 1D 7
payment arrangements BN L - 765 - - 765
Shares repurchased BRELIR% (3.279) = = = (3.279)
Balance at 31 December 2019 732019 12831 H &
and | January 2020 20205 | B | B4R 675,186 17,580 (163) (282,650) 409,953
Total comprehensive FN2ENE (B8
income/(loss) for the year 1Bz = = 1,378 (61,302) (59,924)
Balance at 31 December 2020 7220205 12831 H
BYAEER 675,186 17,580 1215 (343952) 350,029
42.  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Q. HEMBERER
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of MBRRIN0IFIAVBEES S
directors on 29 March 2021. TR I T3S o
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